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FIFTY (50) of us have requested notices to be delivered electronically, to provided email addresses. This package is being delivered on paper. It is just too large to send by email.
                 
After the October 30 AGM, accepted information, from this package, will be published on the Corporation’s website,  www.ycc84.ca
                                                                                                                                        

THIS OCTOBER 30 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ARGUABLY ABOUT THE MOST IMPORTANT MEMBERS’ MEETING EVER HELD.
 OUR OPERATING BY-LAW # 1 HAS BEEN IN EFFECT SINCE THE VERY BEGINNING (1973). THE CORPORATION IS NOW GOVERNED BY A THIRD CONDOMINIUM ACT OF ONTARIO. OTHER BY-LAWS WERE DEVELOPED BY THE DIRECTORS AND PROPERTY MANAGER WITHOUT REVIEW BY A LAWYER.
TIMES HAVE CHANGED. TO PROTECT ALL INTERESTS, A SPECIALIST CONDOMINIUM LAWYER WAS CONTRACTED TO REVIEW AND PROPOSE AMENDMENTS. THESE ARE ATTACHED. 
IN PERSON; OR, BY PROXY ACCEPTANCE IS NECESSARY.
                      
YOUR VOTE IS NEEDED – DO NOT MISS THIS OPPORTUNITY.
                                                                                                                                      
	YORK CONDOMINIUIM CORPORATION NUMBER 84
	Preliminary Notice of Meeting of Owners
OCTOBER 30, 2019-Highcastle School-7 PM
Advance information for owners about a proposed meeting of owners


September 25, 2019

Our Annual General Meeting is scheduled for 7 PM on Wednesday October 30 at Highcastle School.
The agenda will be:
1. President’s Address
2. Accept the minutes of the 2018 Annual General Meeting as previously distributed
3. Accept the audited financial report
4. Nominate and appoint the external auditor for the term ending May 31, 2020
5. Accept proposed By-law 19 (General Operating By-law) to replace By-law 1. 
By-law Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, and 17 are repealed.
6. Accept proposed By-law 18 (Standard Unit) replacing the current By-law 15.
7. Accept proposed By-law 20 (Mediation and Arbitration)
8. Accept proposed By-law 21 (Authorizing Electronic Voting by Members). 
This is a business by-law requiring only 50% affirmative votes of the attendees.
9. Director – Ratify Sandy Mantini as a director for the next two years being the last two years of a three years term. After the last AGM the board was short one director. Sandy agreed to fill that position until the next AGM – that being tonight.
10. Nominate and elect directors for three expiring directors’ positions.
11. Close the meeting.

Attached is the formal Preliminary Notice of Meeting of Owners.                                                                                This is a Province of Ontario standardized form being used by all condominium corporations in Ontario. This is a requirement of the revised Condominium Act of Ontario. Shortly you will be receiving the Notice of Meeting and a Proxy form – the revised Act has also standardized these forms. With the Notice of Meeting you will also receive a proposed new by-law Authorizing Electronic Voting by Members.
You are strongly urged to attend this AGM on October 30.

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION

Management

Electronic Notices – You are receiving this paper/hard copy notice because you have not provided permission for notices to be sent direct to your email address. Please contact management and they will provide a copy of the required Province of Ontario Agreement to Receive Notices Electronically form – it takes less than a minute to complete.
	YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NUMBER 84     331 Military Trail, Toronto, ON  M1E 4E3
	Preliminary Notice of Meeting of Owners
OCTOBER 30 2019-Highcastle School-7 PM
Advance information for owners about a proposed meeting of owners



Instruction: - The purpose of this preliminary notice of meeting is to provide additional advance notice of a planned owners’ meeting, before the notice of meeting is prepared and sent to owners. Among other things, this preliminary notice provides ways for owners to suggest material to be included in the notice of meeting. The corporation is still required to send out a notice of meeting to confirm the meeting date and provide additional information to owners about the meeting.
Section 2: You may provide information to the board in response to this notice in the following way:
By delivering the information to:  K.R. Property Management Agency Inc. 
Section 3: Summary of the Purpose of the Meeting:                                                                                                 Annual General Meeting of members as required by the Condominium Act.
Section 4: This meeting will include discussion of a proposed change to the by-laws.                                                                                                                                                                            The purposes of the proposed changes are:  
To meet the requirements of the Condominium Act regarding a by-law:
1. Proposed By-law 19 (General Operating By-law) 
2. Proposed By-law 18 (Standard Unit)
3. Proposed By-law 20 (Mediation and Arbitration)
4. Proposed By-law 21 (Authorizing Electronic Voting by Members)
To ratify one director’s position for a two years term and to elect directors to fill three positions which expire with this meeting.
Section 5: Request by owners to include material (including any record of the corporation) in the upcoming Notice of Meeting.   
If you will to be a candidate for a director position and have your name printed on the meeting Proxy form Management must receive email/written notice of your intention by 2019/10/04.
 If you wish to request that any material be included in the notice calling this meeting, please deliver the material to the Board to the addresses or in the manner specified above (see item 2 of this form) by the date 2019/10/04.
Although you can request that material be included in the notice of meeting, the board is not obligated to include this material unless, among other requirements the owners of a least 15% of the units request that the material be included. For more detail, please refer to the form called “Submission to Include Material in the Notice of Meeting of Owners” which is available on the Government of Ontario website, and s. 12.8(1)(a) of Ontario Regulation 48/01 under the Condominium Act, 1998.
Note: All references in this form to “unit(s)” should(s) be read as references to “common interest(s) in the corporation, and all references to “unit owner(s)” should be read as references to “the owner(s)” of a common interest in the corporation”.
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BY-LAW NO. 19
YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
BE IT ENACTED as a By-law of York Condominium Corporation No. 84 (the “Corporation”) as follows:
By-law Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, and 17 of York Condominium Corporation No. 84 are hereby repealed.
In addition to those words, terms and/or phrases specifically defined in this By-law, the words, terms and/or phrases used herein which are defined in the Condominium Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, C.19 as amended and the regulations made thereunder (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) and in the declaration of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Declaration”) shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act or the Declaration, unless the context requires otherwise.
[bookmark: _Toc527026484][bookmark: _Toc5635199]
SEAL
Notwithstanding that the Corporation has a seal, any documents or instruments executed by or on behalf of the Corporation and intended to bind the Corporation (including any documents or instruments that would ordinarily require the seal of the Corporation to be affixed thereto) need not be executed under seal, provided the statement “I/We have the authority to bind the Corporation” is noted below the signature(s) of the person(s) duly authorized to sign any such documents or instruments for and on behalf of the Corporation, and such documents shall accordingly have the same force and effect for all purposes as if same had been executed under the seal of the Corporation.
[bookmark: _Toc527026485][bookmark: _Toc5635200]
YEAR-END
The fiscal year-end of the Corporation shall be  in each year or such other date as the board of directors (the “Board”) may by resolution determine.
[bookmark: _Ref496806155][bookmark: _Ref496806201][bookmark: _Ref496806253][bookmark: _Toc527026486][bookmark: _Toc5635201]
RECORDS OF THE CORPORATION
[bookmark: _Ref527023372][bookmark: _Toc527026487][bookmark: _Toc5635202]Records Required to be Maintained
The Corporation shall maintain all records required by sections 46.1 and 55 of the Act for the periods of time specified by the Act, including the following records:
all core records listed in Article 3.2 herein;
the financial records of the Corporation;
a minute book containing the minutes of owners’ meetings and the minutes of Board meetings;
all information returns and notices of change filed with the Registrar pursuant to the Act;
a copy of all status certificates issued by the Corporation together with all notices issued by or to the Corporation which accompany or are referred to in the said status certificates;
a record of the statements and information provided to the Board or the Corporation in accordance with Article 7.6 herein;
all material and records provided to or obtained by the Corporation with respect to training courses completed by a person who is or was a director of the Corporation;
all records that it has (or which are under its control) related to employees of the Corporation;
all records relating to actual or contemplated litigation (or insurance claims or investigations) involving the Corporation that the Corporation creates or receives, together with copies of any court order where the Corporation was a party to the proceedings and any judgment against the Corporation;
all records that relate to specific units or owners that the Corporation creates or receives;
an up-to-date record of which units are in arrears of common expenses;
the following documents and information that the Corporation receives and that relates to the property or to any real or personal property that the Corporation owns or that is the subject of a shared facilities agreement to which the Corporation is a party: (i) existing and expired warranties and guarantees; (ii) reports and opinions of an architect, engineer, or other person whose profession lends credibility to the report or opinion; and (iii) drawings and plans;
records that relate to a right, title, interest, encumbrance or demand of any kind affecting land in relation to the Corporation, but not including the interest of an owner in the owner’s unit or common interest, and that the Corporation creates or receives;
records that relate to a change (or modification, as applicable) under section 97 or 98 of the Act and that the Corporation creates or receives; 
all proxy instruments or ballots for a meeting of owners;
a record of all recorded votes cast at a meeting of owners by a recorded vote that is indicated by telephonic or electronic means;
a copy of all agreements entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation that are current and that have expired;
a copy of all insurance policies that the Corporation has obtained and maintains, and that have expired;
a copy of all redacted versions of any of the records listed in this Article 3.1;
a copy of all applications made under Section 109 of the Act to amend the Declaration (if applicable) for which the court has not made an order;
copies of any resolution of the Board changing the address for service or mailing address of the Corporation;
a copy of any order appointing an inspector or administrator, if applicable, pursuant to section 130 or 131 of the Act, together with any report that the Corporation receives from an inspector in accordance with subsection 130(4) of the Act;
any report or opinion received from an inspector, administrator, mediator, arbitrator, appraiser, lawyer, auditor, engineer, contractor or agent;
a copy of all minutes of settlement and/or written decisions made by any mediator or arbitrator appointed pursuant to section 132 of the Act regarding any issue(s) in dispute involving the Corporation (or to which the Corporation is a party), together with copies of all court orders issued in those circumstances where the Corporation was a party to the proceeding or otherwise directly affected thereby;
a copy of all orders made by the Condominium Authority Tribunal regarding any issues in dispute involving the Corporation (or to which the Corporation is a party);
the names of directors and officers, their mailing address and other contact information and respective terms of office and all directors’ signed consent forms;
a copy of all annual notices of assessment and notices of any extraordinary assessments;
a copy of all notices of lien issued by the Corporation to delinquent owners pursuant to subsection 85(4) of the Act, in respect of which the corresponding certificates of lien have not been discharged or vacated by court order;
the seal of the Corporation;
bills of sale or transfers for all items that are assets of the Corporation but not part of the property;
a record of all reserve fund studies, updates, notices of future funding, reserve fund summaries, funding plans, statements of differences and investment plans of the Corporation; and
any other information required to be maintained as records by the Act or specified in any other by-law of the Corporation.
[bookmark: _Ref527023370][bookmark: _Toc527026488][bookmark: _Toc5635203][bookmark: _Hlk11229781]Core Records
The following records constitute core records pursuant to the Act: 
a copy of the Declaration, by-laws, and rules of the Corporation;
the budget for the Corporation’s current fiscal year and all amendments, if any, made to that budget; 
the most recent financial statements that the board has approved under subsection 66(3) of the Act;
the most recent auditor’s report presented to the audit committee or to the board under subsection 67(6) of the Act; 
the current plan proposed by the board under subsection 94(8) of the Act for future funding of the reserve fund; 
the owners’ names and identification of the units, and the owners’ addresses for service if the addresses for service are in Ontario, if the owners give notice to the Corporation in writing with such information;
the names of the mortgagees, identification of the units, and the mortgagees’ addresses for service, if: (i) the mortgagee gives notice to the Corporation in writing, setting out the mortgagee’s names and, in accordance with the Act, identifies the unit that is the subject of the mortgage; (ii) under the terms of the mortgage, the mortgagee has the right to vote at a meeting of owners in the place of the unit owner or to consent in writing in the place of the unit owner, and the mortgagee notifies the Corporation of such right, including any change in the address for service; and (iii) the mortgagee’s addresses for service is in Ontario;

the names of all owners or mortgagees who have agreed in writing to a method of electronic communication and a statement of that method;
a record of all written notices from an owner that a unit is leased, together with the lessee’s name, the owner’s address and a copy of the lease or renewal or summary of it, in the form prescribed by the Minister;
a record of all written notices from an owner that a lease of a unit is terminated and not renewed;
all periodic information certificates that the Corporation, within the twelve (12) month period before receiving the request for records or a requester’s response, sent to the owners under section 26.3 of the Act or was required by that section to send to the owners; and
the minutes of owners or meetings of the board within the twelve (12) month period before the Corporation receives a request for records or a requester’s response.
[bookmark: _Toc527026489][bookmark: _Toc5635204]
DUTIES OF THE CORPORATION
[bookmark: _Toc527026490][bookmark: _Toc5635205]Duties Of The Corporation
In addition to the duties and obligations set forth in the Declaration, the duties of the Corporation shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:
control, management and administration of the common elements, the assets of the Corporation and any unit (if applicable) in a fit and proper condition, including, without limitation, the operation, care, upkeep, maintenance, replacement and repair of the common elements and assets; the maintenance of units when an owner fails to maintain the unit within a reasonable time and if the failure presents a potential risk of personal injury to persons on the property or a potential risk of damage to the property; and the repair after damage of units where the owner fails to carry out a repair after damage to the unit in accordance with the Declaration and section 92 of the Act;
the assessment of contributions toward common expenses from the owners;
taking all reasonable steps to collect contributions towards common expenses from all of the owners, and maintaining and enforcing the Corporation’s lien arising pursuant to the Act against each unit in respect of which the owner has defaulted in the payment of common expenses and instructing legal counsel and/or the Corporation’s condominium manager to prepare, register and discharge, following payment, certificates of lien;
arranging for the supply of and collection of charges for utilities to the common elements and the units (unless separately metered), except where prevented from carrying out such duty by reason of any event beyond the reasonable control of the Corporation on the express understanding that if any apparatus or equipment used in the supply of any utility service(s) becomes incapable, at any time, of fulfilling its function or is damaged or destroyed, then the Corporation shall have a reasonable time within which to repair or replace such apparatus or equipment and the Corporation shall not be liable for indirect or consequential damages or for damages for personal discomfort or illness by reason of the breach of such duty;
obtaining and maintaining insurance for the property as may be required by the Act, Declaration or by-laws, including insurance for damage to the common elements, units and those pre-registration improvements to units as described in the Declaration or the standard unit by-law, together with any required insurance appraisals of the full replacement cost of the common elements and assets of the Corporation, the units and any pre-registration improvements made to units for which the Corporation is responsible; insurance against the Corporation’s liability resulting from a breach of duty as occupier of the common elements or land that the Corporation holds as an asset; and insurance against liability arising from the ownership, use or operation by or on its behalf of boilers, machinery, pressure vessels and motor vehicles;
the preparation and delivery of status certificates as required by the Act (together with all requisite accompanying documents, statements and information as provided by the Act) and the Corporation shall be entitled to a fee up to the maximum amount prescribed by the Act from time to time for providing the same;
the preparation and delivery of information certificates to be sent to owners in accordance with section 26.3 of the Act, unless exempted pursuant to the Act;
the preparation of an annual budget in accordance with Article 11.1 of this By-law;
causing audits to be made after every fiscal year-end and providing financial statements and auditor’s report to the owners in accordance with the Act;
the payment of all fees and assessments levied from time to time by the Condominium Authority of Ontario from time to time pursuant to the Act;
the preparation and filing of all returns and notices with the Registrar as may be required from time to time by the Act and in accordance with the prescribed timelines set out in the Act;
the employment and dismissal of personnel necessary for the maintenance and operation of the common elements, assets and portions of units that the Corporation is obligated to maintain (if applicable);
the investment of monies held by the Corporation in accordance with section 115 of the Act;
obtaining and maintaining insurance for the benefit of all directors and officers (with an extended discovery period clause in the case of change of insurers to ensure that directors’ and officers’ actions are protected when the Corporation changes insurers) in respect of anything done, or required to be done or permitted to be done by them in respect of the execution of the duties of their offices, except insurance against a liability, cost, charge or expense of such directors or officers incurred as a result of a contravention of any of the duties imposed upon them pursuant to the Act;
the preparation and maintenance of the records to be kept by the Corporation in accordance with the Act and the by-laws;
the calling and holding of meetings of owners and the Board and the giving of notices, including preliminary notices, as required;
taking all reasonable steps to ensure that the owners, the occupiers of units, the lessees of the common elements (if any), and the agents and employees of the Corporation comply with the provisions of Act, the Declaration, the by-laws and the rules of the Corporation in a consistent and timely manner;
establishing and maintaining one or more adequate reserve funds for the major repair and replacement of the units, the common elements, and assets of the Corporation, if the Corporation has the obligation to repair in that regard under the Act, or for any other purposes in accordance with the Act, and assessing owners for their appropriate contributions in accordance with a comprehensive reserve fund study when required, updates thereto, the funding plan, notice of future funding and the investment plan in accordance with the Act;
compliance with all pre-existing or future agreements entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation including any site plan agreement, agreement granting the declarant a license to enter upon the common elements for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations with respect to any site plan agreement;
compliance with any procurement process prescribed by the Act prior to entering into a prescribed contract or transaction (if applicable);
the supervision of all public and private service companies which enter upon the common elements for the purpose of supplying, installing, replacing and servicing the systems or equipment installed or supplied by them; and
the carrying out of the duties of the Corporation and or the Board as required by the Act, the Corporation’s Declaration, by-laws, or existing agreements.
[bookmark: _Toc527026491][bookmark: _Toc5635206]
POWERS OF THE CORPORATION
[bookmark: _Ref518552727][bookmark: _Ref518552751][bookmark: _Toc527026492][bookmark: _Toc5635207]Powers Of The Corporation
The powers of the Corporation shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:
the entering into of an agreement with any one or more persons or corporations with respect to management, maintenance, contracting, telecommunications, insurance, security, landscaping, supervision, cleaning, administrative, audit, legal, engineering and all other services as may be required by the Corporation, subject to such compensation, provisions and terms as the Board may authorize, and any other agreements permitted by the Act and the Declaration, which are deemed advisable, desirable or necessary by the Board;
the authority to object to assessments under the Assessment Act, or any successor thereof, on behalf of the owners provided that the Corporation gives notice of the objections to the owners; and the authority to defray the costs of objections out of the common expenses on the express understanding that if any owner notifies the Corporation in writing of such owner’s desire that their unit assessment appeal not proceed or be withdrawn, then the Corporation shall take all reasonable steps to formally withdraw any appeal filed on behalf of such owner in respect of their unit assessment. Any reduction in the realty tax assessment applicable to any units and reduced municipal taxes shall accrue to the benefit of the owners of such units;
the obtaining and maintaining of fidelity bonds, for any person dealing with the Corporation’s monies in such amounts as the Board may deem reasonable;
the right to lease or grant a license, easement or access rights in favour of any telecommunications provider or utility provider which provides services to the owners and residents of the units, with respect to any part of the common elements and assets of the Corporation (except such common elements over which an owner has the exclusive use), for such consideration, during such term and upon such provisions and conditions as the Board may determine to be in the best interests of the owners from time to time;
the right to enter into a bulk telecommunications agreement with a telecommunications provider who shall provide telecommunication services to the owners and residents of units for such consideration, during such term and upon such provisions and conditions as the Board may determine to be in the best interests of the owners from time to time, in which event the Corporation shall have a duty to pay the bulk telecommunications fee and any related expense which it contracts to incur, which amounts shall constitute a common expense of the Corporation;
the right to lease any part of the non-exclusive use common elements, or grant or transfer any easement, right-of-way or licence over, upon, under or through (or otherwise affecting) any part or parts of the common elements, and/or the right to release and abandon any easement(s) or right(s)-of-way heretofore or hereafter granted to or created in favour of the Corporation, and the right to enter into any agreement relating to the foregoing upon such terms and conditions as the Board deems reasonable;
[bookmark: _Ref518552725]the right to authorize and include in the budget for the Corporation for any fiscal year the amounts (up to one-twelfth of the annual budgeted common expenses for the current fiscal year) that the Board in its discretion decides are necessary that the Corporation borrow in order to protect, maintain, preserve or ensure the due and continued operation of the property;
the borrowing of such amounts in any fiscal year (either not included in the budget of the Corporation or where included in the budget, if in excess of the limit set out in Article 5.1(g) above) as the Board determines is necessary or desirable in order to protect, maintain, preserve or ensure the due and continued operation of the property in accordance with the Act, Declaration and by-laws of the Corporation, subject in each case to approval by a vote of the owners at a meeting called for that purpose;
the right to charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge any asset of the Corporation (other than the reserve fund), including book debts and rights, as security for any money borrowed, or other debts, or any obligation or liability of the Corporation, subject in each case to approval by a vote of the owners at a meeting called for that purpose;
the holding of residents’ social activities and purchase of gifts or making donations where there is a death or illness of an owner or resident or for a service award for an employee, or an owner’s or resident’s volunteer contribution to the Corporation;
entering into, or amending, any agreement with one or more other condominium corporations with respect to any shared services, amenities or facilities if and where applicable and appointing members of the Board as representatives to the shared facilities committee and enacting a resolution as to the powers and duties of those representatives, if applicable;
commencing, responding to, settling, adjusting or referring to the Condominium Authority Tribunal, mediation and/or arbitration or litigation any disputes and/or claims which may be made upon or which may be asserted on behalf of the Corporation;
periodically conducting an audit of the building and/or the operations of the Corporation, as and when deemed appropriate by the Board;
the delegation to such one or more of the officers and/or directors of the Corporation as may be designated by the directors, all or any of the powers conferred by the foregoing clauses of Article 5.1 of this By-law to such extent and in such manner as the directors shall determine at the time of such delegation; and
entering into any other agreements which may be permitted by the Act and the Declaration and which are deemed advisable, desirable or necessary by the Board.
[bookmark: _Toc527026493][bookmark: _Toc5635208]
NOTICE
[bookmark: _Toc527026494][bookmark: _Toc5635209]Notice to Owner/Mortgagee
Subject always to any specific provision to the contrary in the Act, any notice, communication or other document, including budgets and notices of assessment, required to be given by the Corporation to any owner or mortgagee shall be sufficiently given if:
delivered personally to the person to whom it is to be given; or
sent by prepaid ordinary mail addressed to the person at the address shown on the records of the Corporation; or
sent by facsimile transmission, electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the person agrees in writing in the prescribed manner, that the party giving the notice may give the notice by that method and a statement of that method of giving notice appears in the record of the Corporation; or
in the case of an owner only, delivered at the owner’s unit or at the mail box for the unit, unless: (i) the owner has given an address for service that is not the address of the unit of the owner or the address for the mail box for the unit; or (ii) the Corporation has received a written request from the owner that the notice not be given in this manner by the following times;
in the case of a notice of meeting of owners, at least twenty (20) days before the day of the meeting; or
in the case of a preliminary notice or any other notice to owners that is not a notice of meeting of owners, at least five (5) days before the day the notice is given.
[bookmark: _Toc527026495][bookmark: _Toc5635210]Notice Exception
The Corporation shall not be obliged to give notice to any owner who has not notified the Corporation in writing that they have become an owner or to any mortgagee who has not notified the Corporation in writing that they have become a mortgagee.
[bookmark: _Toc527026496][bookmark: _Toc5635211]Notice To The Board Or Corporation
Except as otherwise provided in the Act, any notice, communication or other document required or desired to be given to the Corporation, shall be given by giving same personally to any director or officer of the Corporation, or by courier or registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Corporation at its address for service, or sent by facsimile transmission, electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the Board has, by resolution, decided that it is a method for the Corporation to receive delivery.
[bookmark: _Toc527026497][bookmark: _Toc5635212]Receipt of Notice
Any notice, communication or document shall be deemed to have been received:
when it is delivered personally or delivered to the latest address shown on the records of the Corporation; 
when sent by facsimile, as evidenced by a confirmation of transmission, if the recipient has agreed to this method of communication; 
when sent by electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the recipient has agreed in writing, in the prescribed manner, to this method of communication; 
the date of delivery receipt, if sent by courier; or
if mailed, on the day that the notice, communication or document is deposited in a post office or public letter box.
[bookmark: _Toc527026498][bookmark: _Toc5635213]Omissions And Errors
The accidental omission to give any notice to anyone entitled to notice or the non-receipt of any notice or any error in any notice not affecting the substance of the notice shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting held pursuant to such notice or otherwise founded on it.
[bookmark: _Toc527026499][bookmark: _Toc5635214]
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
[bookmark: _Toc527026500][bookmark: _Toc5635215]Duties
The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board.
The Board shall have the obligation to perform all of the duties of the Corporation; however, the Board may delegate certain specific duties to the condominium manager by a duly enacted resolution of the Board and pursuant to the terms of any management agreement between the Corporation and the condominium manager.
All directors shall abide by the current form of Directors’ Code of Ethics from time to time adopted by resolution of the Board. The current form of the Directors’ Code of Ethics as at the date on which this By-law is effective is attached as Schedule “A” to this By-law, it being understood that the Directors’ Code of Ethics may from time to time be amended or replaced by resolution of the Board.
[bookmark: _Toc527026501][bookmark: _Toc5635216]Number and Quorum
The number of directors shall be seven (7) of whom four (4) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, irrespective of any vacancy that arises in the Board. 
[bookmark: _Ref518553468][bookmark: _Toc527026502][bookmark: _Toc5635217]Qualifications
No person shall be nominated, elected or appointed to the Board unless they meet the following criteria:
the person must be an individual;
the person must be 18 years of age or older;
[bookmark: _Ref496862279]the person has complied with the disclosure obligations within the prescribed time in accordance with the Act, as set out in Article 7.6 and 7.7 herein;
[bookmark: _Ref518552993]the person shall not have the status of bankrupt;
[bookmark: _Ref518552996]the person shall not have been found to be incapable of managing property within the meaning of the Substitute Decisions Act, 1992, or the Mental Health Act, or subject to the Act, shall not have been found to be incapable by any court in Canada or elsewhere; 
[bookmark: _Ref518552998][bookmark: _Ref496862271]the person shall not have been convicted of a crime under the Criminal Code within the past six (6) years, or be a person with respect to whom the Corporation’s insurer declines to provide errors and omissions insurance or fidelity bonding;
[bookmark: _Ref527024159]the person shall be a resident-owner or reside with a resident-owner of a unit in the Corporation;
[bookmark: _Ref518553002][bookmark: _Ref496862263]the person shall not reside or jointly own a unit with a person:
who is currently a director; or
who has already been nominated to be a director at the same meeting of owners;
the person shall not have a certificate of lien for common expenses registered against their unit;
[bookmark: _Ref496862256][bookmark: _Ref527024172]the person shall not be a condominium manager or staff member of the Corporation or its condominium management company or any contractor or agent thereof; and
[bookmark: _Ref496862247][bookmark: _Ref527024180]the person and/or spouse, child or parent of the person and/or the child or parent of the spouse of the person shall not be a party to litigation, mediation and/or arbitration against the Corporation or be party to a proceeding brought before the Condominium Authority Tribunal.
The appointment or election of a person as a director is not effective unless:
the person was present at the meeting at which the person was elected or appointed and did not refuse at the meeting to act as a director; or
where the person was not present at the meeting at which the person was elected or appointed, the person consented in writing to act as a director before the person’s election or appointment or within ten days after the meeting.
[bookmark: _Ref518553472][bookmark: _Toc527026503][bookmark: _Toc5635218]Disqualification
A person immediately ceases to be a director if:
the director no longer meets the qualifications in Article 7.3(c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (j), or (k);
the director has not completed the required director training within six (6) months of being elected or appointed to the Board and/or has not sent evidence of same within fifteen (15) days of completion, unless the director’s current term commenced prior to November 1, 2017;
a certificate of lien has been registered against a unit owned by the director and the director does not obtain a discharge of the lien within ninety (90) days of the registration of the certificate of lien;
the director misses three (3) consecutive Board meetings or a total of five (5) meetings in any year commencing at the date of the annual general meeting and is unable to provide an explanation for their absence that is satisfactory to the Board, acting reasonably;
the director breaches the Directors’ Code of Ethics and the director is deemed to be disqualified as set out in Article 7.5; and
the director breaches the confidentiality provisions in Article 7.11.
[bookmark: _Ref518559304][bookmark: _Toc523142815][bookmark: _Toc527026504][bookmark: _Ref493063371][bookmark: _Ref493063624][bookmark: _Ref493063681][bookmark: _Ref493063743][bookmark: _Toc493065807]Code Of Ethics Breach
Where a director is the subject of allegations regarding a breach of the Directors’ Code of Ethics:
for the first alleged breach (or any subsequent alleged breach where the Board determined that any prior alleged breach(es) were not founded): 
the breach shall be discussed with the director at a Board meeting. After hearing the position of persons alleging the breach and/or the remainder of the Board, the director alleged to be in breach shall have an opportunity to respond to the allegations. After these presentations, the director alleged to be in breach shall not be present for any portion of meeting where the breach is discussed by the remaining directors and shall not participate in any decision with respect thereto. The remaining directors shall vote on whether the director is in breach of the Directors’ Code of Ethics and whether the director should be reprimanded, as appropriate in the circumstances. If the majority of the remaining directors at the meeting determine that the director has breached the Directors’ Code of Ethics, they shall then determine whether and how the director should be reprimanded. The director shall be advised of the result of the vote with respect to the breach immediately following the vote and such decision shall be included in the minutes of the Board meeting. 
in the event that a director is alleged to have breached the Directors’ Code of Ethics on a second or any subsequent occasion (after the Board has determined that a first breach has occurred): 
the breach shall be discussed with the director at a Board meeting. After hearing the position of persons alleging the breach and/or the remainder of the Board, the director alleged to be in breach shall have an opportunity to respond to the allegations. After these presentations, the director alleged to be in breach shall not be present for any portion of meeting where the breach is discussed by the remaining directors and shall not participate in any decision with respect thereto. The remaining directors shall vote on whether the director is in breach of the Directors’ Code of Ethics and whether the director should be reprimanded and/or disqualified. If the majority of the remaining directors at the meeting determine that the director has breached the Directors’ Code of Ethics, they shall then determine whether and how the director should be reprimanded and/or disqualified. The director shall be advised of the result of the vote with respect to the breach immediately following the vote, and such decision shall be included in the minutes of the Board meeting. If the majority of the remaining directors at the meeting determine that the director should be disqualified, the director shall be advised immediately following the vote, at which point, the director shall be deemed to be disqualified and such decision shall be included in the minutes of the Board meeting; and
separate in-camera minutes shall be kept for the portion of the meeting where the issue of breach of the Directors’ Code of Ethics was discussed. These minutes shall be kept strictly confidential and shall not be available to unit owners or the director who is the subject of the allegations. 
[bookmark: _Ref527023371][bookmark: _Ref527023902][bookmark: _Ref527024400][bookmark: _Ref527024420][bookmark: _Ref527024474][bookmark: _Ref527024491][bookmark: _Ref527024550][bookmark: _Toc527026505][bookmark: _Toc5635220]Disclosure Obligations
The following statements, which shall be current as of the time such statements are provided, shall be provided as set out in Article 7.7 and by those persons described therein:
[bookmark: _Ref493063641]if the person is a party to any legal action to which the Corporation is a party, a statement of that fact and a brief general description of the action;
[bookmark: _Ref493063748]if the spouse, child or parent of the person, or the child or parent of the spouse of the person, is a party to any legal action to which the Corporation is a party, a statement of that fact, the name of the spouse, child or parent and a brief general description of the action;
[bookmark: _Ref493063755]if an occupier of a unit that the person or the person’s spouse owns or that the person occupies with the occupier is a party to any legal action to which the Corporation is a party, a statement of that fact, the name of the occupier and a brief general description of the action;
[bookmark: _Ref493063761]if the person has been convicted of an offence under the Act within the preceding ten (10) years, a statement of that fact and a brief general description of the offence;
[bookmark: _Ref493063767]if the person has, directly or indirectly, a material interest in a contract or transaction to which the Corporation is a party, in a capacity other than as a purchaser, mortgagee, owner or occupier of a unit, a statement of that fact and a statement of the nature and extent of the interest;
[bookmark: _Ref496806545]if the person has, directly or indirectly, a material interest in a contract or transaction to which the declarant or declarant affiliate is a party, in a capacity other than as a purchaser, mortgagee, owner or occupier of a unit, a statement of that fact and a statement of the nature and extent of the interest;
[bookmark: _Ref493063649]if the person is an owner in the Corporation and if the contributions to the common expenses payable for the person’s unit are in arrears for sixty (60) days or more, a statement of that fact;
[bookmark: _Ref493063655]if the person is not an owner of a unit in the Corporation, a statement of that fact; and
[bookmark: _Ref493063661]if the person is not an occupier of a unit in the Corporation, a statement of that fact.
[bookmark: _Ref493063611][bookmark: _Toc493065808][bookmark: _Toc527026506][bookmark: _Toc5635221]Timing of Disclosure Obligations
The statements described in Article 7.6 shall be provided by the person listed below and as set out below:
[bookmark: _Ref518553568]if the person provides notice to the Board of their intention to be a candidate in the election by the date specified in the preliminary notice, at the time of providing such notice;
[bookmark: _Ref518553573]if the person does not provide notice to the Board of its intention to be a candidate in the election by the date specified in the preliminary notice but is a candidate in the election of one or more directors at a meeting, at the meeting; 
if the person is appointed to the Board, at any time before being appointed;
at the times prescribed by the Act, if the person is a director: 
the statements described in Articles 7.6(b), (c), (d), and (e) shall be required, unless the director has already provided such statements in accordance with the Act; 
the statement described in Article 7.6(f) shall be required; and
the statements described in Article 7.6(a), (g), (h), and (i) shall not be required, except as required pursuant to Article 7.7(a) or (b); and
as otherwise prescribed by the Act.
[bookmark: _Toc527026507][bookmark: _Toc5635222]Election And Term
Subject to the Act,
The directors of the Corporation shall be elected in rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Those directors who have been elected to office and whose terms have not expired at the meeting at which the owners approve this By-law, will complete the terms for which they have been elected;
At each annual meeting a number of directors equal to the number of directors retiring at the end of their terms in such year shall be elected for a term of three (3) years;
If applicable, the candidates(s) receiving the greatest number of votes shall be elected to the longest available term(s);
Directors may be removed before the expiration of their term in accordance with the procedure set forth in the Act and this By-law; and
Election to the Board shall be by ballot, unless the election is by acclamation.
[bookmark: _Toc527026508][bookmark: _Toc5635223]Calling Of Meetings
Meetings of the Board shall be held from time to time at such places and at such times and on such days as either the President or a Vice-President, or any two (2) directors may determine, and the Secretary shall call meetings when directly authorized by the President or by the Vice-President and/or any other two (2) directors. Notice of any meeting shall be given personally, by ordinary prepaid mail, electronic communication, courier delivery or facsimile to each director at the address for service given by each director to the Corporation, or if no such address has been given, to their last known place of residence, not less than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in the Province of Ontario) before the time when the meeting is to be held, save that no notice of a meeting shall be necessary if all the directors are present or if those absent waive notice of or otherwise signify in writing their consent to the holding of such meeting.
The Board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings at a place and hour to be named. A copy of the resolution of the Board fixing a place and time of regular meetings of the Board shall be given to each director forthwith after being passed, but no other notice shall be required for any such regular meeting.
A meeting of the Board may be held or convened by way of teleconference or another form of communications system that allows the directors to participate concurrently, if all directors of the Corporation consent to the means used for holding the meeting. The Board may, by resolution signed by all the directors, provide their consent, in advance, to have meetings of the Board conducted in the manner contemplated herein, without the necessity of requiring new consents prior to each and every meeting, provided that such resolution (and the standing consent referred to therein) shall be automatically rendered ineffective from and after (but not prior to) the delivery to the Board by any director of a written notice revoking their consent to such resolution.
[bookmark: _Toc527026509][bookmark: _Toc5635224]Declaration Of Interest
The provisions in the Act relating to the declaration of interest of any director in any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation shall be followed and complied with; and
the Board shall, prior to voting on any contract in which a director is interested, obtain at least two (2) other independent bids from other contractors to supply or provide the same supplies or services to the Corporation.
[bookmark: _Ref527024240][bookmark: _Toc527026510][bookmark: _Toc5635225]Confidentiality
All matters discussed at a Board meeting, including all documents and information, are strictly privileged and confidential and may not be disclosed to any person (including a spouse) unless such information or documentation is determined by the Board in writing or as evidenced by the minutes of the Corporation, not to be privileged and confidential. The duty not to disclose information extends to all information obtained as a result of a director’s position on the Board.
[bookmark: _Ref518553147][bookmark: _Toc527026511][bookmark: _Toc5635226]Conflict of Interest
Any information gained, including but not limited to any information respecting units, unit owners, tenants or residents, as a result of a director’s position on the Board, may not be used for personal benefit, whether monetary or otherwise.
[bookmark: _Toc527026512][bookmark: _Toc5635227]Protection Of Directors And Officers
No director or officer of the Corporation shall be liable for:
the acts, neglect or default of any other director or officer;
any loss or expense incurred by the Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired by order of the Board for or on behalf of the Corporation;
the insufficiency or deficiency of any certificate or instrument in or upon which any of the monies of the Corporation shall be invested, provided always that the investment certificate or instrument conforms with the provisions of the Act;
any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person with whom any of the monies, certificates, term deposits, instruments or effects of the Corporation shall be deposited;
any loss occasioned by an error of judgment or oversight on their part, provided that they have acted in accordance with their obligations and duties pursuant to the Act; or
any other loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever which shall happen in the execution of the duties of their office or in relation thereto;
unless the same shall happen through their own dishonest or fraudulent act or acts, bad faith, failure to meet the standard of care established in the Act, wilful blindness or intentional misconduct.
[bookmark: _Toc527026513][bookmark: _Toc5635228]Indemnity Of Directors And Officers
Every director and every officer of the Corporation and their heirs, executors, administrators, estate trustees and other legal personal representatives, respectively, shall from time to time be indemnified and saved harmless by the Corporation from and against:
any liability and all costs, charges and expenses that the director or officer sustains or incurs in respect of any action, suit or proceeding that is proposed or commenced against the person for or in respect of anything that person has done, omitted to do or permitted in respect of the execution of the duties of office; and
all other costs, charges and expenses that the person properly sustains or incurs in respect of the affairs of the Corporation;
unless the loss occurs through their own dishonest or fraudulent act or acts, bad faith, failure to meet the standard of care established in the Act, wilful blindness or intentional misconduct, and on the express understanding that the Corporation is to be advised of any such action, suit or other proceeding (and liabilities, costs, charges and expenses in connection therewith) forthwith after the director or officer receives notice thereof or otherwise becomes aware of same and the Corporation is given the right to join in the defence of any such action, suit or proceeding.
[bookmark: _Toc527026514][bookmark: _Toc5635229]Consents
Any consent required under the provisions of the Act, the Declaration, the by-laws or the rules shall be given by the Board in writing after a resolution for same has been passed.
[bookmark: _Toc527026515][bookmark: _Toc5635230]
OFFICERS
[bookmark: _Toc527026516][bookmark: _Toc5635231]Election Of President
At the first meeting of the Board, after each election of directors, or when a vacancy occurs, the Board shall elect from among its members a President. In default of such election the then incumbent President, if a member of the Board, shall hold office until their successor is elected.
[bookmark: _Toc527026517][bookmark: _Toc5635232]Appointed Officers
At the first meeting of the Board after each election of directors, the Board shall appoint the officers of the Corporation. The Board shall appoint a Secretary and may appoint one (1) or more Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer and such other officers as the Board may determine, including one (1) or more assistants to any of the officers so appointed. The President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer shall be directors and any other officer may, but need not be, a member of the Board. One (1) person other than the President may hold more than one office and if the same person holds both the office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer, they may be known as Secretary-Treasurer.
[bookmark: _Toc527026518][bookmark: _Toc5635233]Term Of Office
In the absence of a written agreement to the contrary, officers shall hold office until removed by the Board. All officers shall adhere to and be governed by the same qualifications as apply to directors pursuant to Articles 7.3 and 7.4. Officers shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time determine that are consistent with the Act, the Declaration and by-laws of the Corporation.
[bookmark: _Toc527026519][bookmark: _Toc5635234]President
The President shall:
when present, be the chairperson at all meetings of the Board and of the owners or designate the chairperson at all such meetings;
have one (1) vote only at all meetings of the Board;
co-ordinate the activities of the remaining members of the Board and officers;
be charged with the general supervision of the business and affairs of the Corporation and in the absence of a resolution of the Board specifying another officer, deal directly with the condominium manager and the Corporation’s solicitor in all areas of concern;
in the absence of a resolution of the Board specifying another officer, cast votes on behalf of the Corporation for units owned by the Corporation, except for units that are intended for parking or storage purposes or for the purpose of housing services or facilities or mechanical installations; and
direct the enforcement of the Act, the Declaration, the by-laws and the rules of the Corporation by all lawful means at the Board’s disposal.
[bookmark: _Toc527026520][bookmark: _Toc5635235]Vice-President
The Vice-President shall during the absence of the President, perform their duties and exercise their powers. If there is more than one (1) Vice-President then the Vice-Presidents, in order of seniority as determined by the Board, shall perform the functions of the President. If a Vice-President exercises any such duty or power, the absence of the President shall be presumed. A Vice-President shall also perform such duties and exercise such powers as the Board may prescribe from time to time.
[bookmark: _Toc527026521][bookmark: _Toc5635236]Secretary
The Secretary shall:
supervise the giving of all notices required to be given to the owners, directors, mortgagees and all others entitled thereto pursuant to the Act or the Declaration, by-laws or rules or any contracts to which the Corporation is a party;
attend all meetings of the directors and of the owners;
enter or cause to be entered in books kept for that purpose minutes of all proceedings at such meetings;
supervise and control all books, papers, records, documents and other instruments belonging to the Corporation of which the condominium manager shall be the custodian; and
cause to have the by-laws registered on title and notice of the by-laws and of the rules to be sent to all owners and mortgagees as required by the Act.
[bookmark: _Toc527026522][bookmark: _Toc5635237]Treasurer
The Treasurer shall:
keep or cause to be kept full and accurate books of account in which shall be recorded all receipts and disbursements of the Corporation;
prepare or cause to be prepared, in consultation with the condominium manager, the annual budget and the annual financial statements to be presented to the owners at the annual general meeting;
prepare or cause to be prepared, in consultation with the condominium manager and others as selected by the Board, a reserve fund plan, when required; and
prepare or cause to be prepared, in consultation with those selected by the Board, an investment plan for the Corporation’s funds.
[bookmark: _Toc527026523][bookmark: _Toc5635238]Condominium Management
Only a licensed condominium manager or licensed condominium management service provider under the Condominium Management Services Act, 2015 (the “condominium manager”) may be appointed by the Board from time to time. The condominium manager shall be responsible for the general management and direction of the Corporation’s business affairs, subject to the overriding authority of the Board and supervision by the President. The duties, services, remuneration and any contractual provisions applicable to the condominium manager shall be specified in writing as determined from time to time by the Board. The Board may permit the condominium manager to exercise some or all of the specified services normally provided by a condominium manager, subject to any appropriate adjustments to any condominium management agreement currently in effect as may be mutually agreed with the condominium manager. The services rendered by the condominium manager shall be specified in writing and shall be exclusive of the services rendered by the directors.
[bookmark: _Toc527026524][bookmark: _Toc5635239]Officers
The officers of the Corporation shall have such additional responsibilities as may be approved by resolution of the Board.
[bookmark: _Toc527026525][bookmark: _Toc5635240]Committees
In order to assist the Board in managing the affairs of the Corporation, the Board may from time to time constitute such advisory committees to advise and make recommendations to the Board in connection with the activities, management, budgets, rules, or any other matter related to the common elements or any other property to which the Corporation has any rights or shares or obligations.
The members of such committees shall be appointed by the Board to hold office and may be removed at any time by resolution of the Board.
[bookmark: _Toc527026526][bookmark: _Toc5635242]
MEETINGS OF THE OWNERS
[bookmark: _Toc527026527][bookmark: _Toc5635243]Annual Meetings
The annual meeting of the owners shall be held within the City of Toronto at such time and on such day in each year as the Board may determine, for the purpose of hearing and receiving the financial reports and statements required to be presented before the owners at an annual meeting; electing directors; the appointing of the auditor and fixing or authorizing the Board to fix the auditor’s compensation; and for the transaction of such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
Each annual meeting is to take place no later than six (6) months following the end of the Corporation’s fiscal year.
[bookmark: _Toc527026528][bookmark: _Toc5635244]Special Meetings
The Board shall have the power at any time to call a special meeting of the owners for the transaction of any business, the nature of which shall be specified in the notice calling the meeting.
[bookmark: _Toc527026529][bookmark: _Toc5635245]Preliminary Notice
At least twenty (20) days before the Board sends out a notice of each meeting of the owners, or as otherwise set out in the Act, the Board shall send a preliminary notice, prepared in accordance with the Act, to the owners and mortgagees that appear on the record at least five (5) days before the day the preliminary notice is given.
[bookmark: _Toc527026530][bookmark: _Toc5635246]Notices Of Meetings of Owners
At least fifteen (15) days’ written notice of each meeting of the owners of the Corporation specifying the place, the date and the hour of the meeting and the nature of the business to be presented (or have appended to the notice a copy of the meeting agenda) shall be given to the auditor of the Corporation and to each owner and to each mortgagee, whose name and address for service is listed on the records of the Corporation twenty (20) days before the date of the meeting and who is therefore entitled to vote in accordance with the Act. A copy of the financial statements and the auditor’s report, as well as all other material required by the Act, shall be attached to or included in the notice of the annual meeting.
[bookmark: _Toc527026531][bookmark: _Toc5635247]Persons Entitled To Be Present
The only persons entitled to attend a meeting of owners shall be:
the owners and mortgagees entered on the Corporation’s records and who are entitled to receive notice of and entitled to vote at the meeting in accordance with the Act;
any other person entitled to vote at the meeting;
the auditor of the Corporation, the directors of the Corporation, a representative of the Corporation’s condominium manager and any others who, although not entitled to vote, are entitled or required under the provisions of the Act or the by-laws of the Corporation to be present at the meeting; and
any other person on the invitation of the Chairperson of the meeting or with the consent of the majority of owners present at the meeting.
[bookmark: _Ref518552282][bookmark: _Toc527026532][bookmark: _Toc5635248]Quorum
A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of owners other than those meetings described in Article 9.6(b) herein, is those owners who together own twenty-five percent (25%) of the units in the Corporation;
[bookmark: _Ref496806318]Where quorum is not present at the first and second attempt to hold: (i) an annual general meeting; (ii) a meeting to elect one (1) or more directors; or (iii) a meeting to appoint an auditor, a quorum for the transaction of business at any third or subsequent attempt to hold such meeting is those owners who together own fifteen percent (15%) of the units in the Corporation, except that this Article 9.6(b) shall not apply to any part of the business of such meeting that concerns the removal of a director or the removal of an auditor; and
If quorum is not present within a reasonable time after the time appointed for the holding of any meeting of owners (such reasonable time to be determined by the chairperson of the meeting) the Board shall call a further meeting of owners in accordance with the Act.
[bookmark: _Ref518552307][bookmark: _Toc527026533][bookmark: _Toc5635249]Voting
At each meeting of owners, subject to the provisions of the Act, every owner shall be entitled to vote who is entitled to receive notice of the meeting and is not in arrears of common expenses for thirty (30) days or more at the time of the meeting.
If the unit has been mortgaged and the right to vote has been given to the mortgagee, the owner (or their proxy) may, subject to Article 9.7(c) herein, nevertheless represent such unit at meetings and vote in respect thereof.
[bookmark: _Ref518552309]In the event the mortgagee has notified the Corporation and the owner of the mortgagee’s intention to exercise such right at least four (4) days before the date specified in the notice of meeting, the mortgagee or the mortgagee’s proxy may exercise the right to vote.
Any dispute over the right to vote shall be resolved by the chairperson of the meeting upon such evidence as they may deem sufficient.
The chairperson shall not, in the case of a tie, cast a deciding vote.
[bookmark: _Toc527026534][bookmark: _Toc5635250]Method of Voting
Unless otherwise provided in the Act, all questions proposed for consideration of the owners at a meeting of owners shall be determined by a majority of the votes cast by owners at the meeting and a vote may be cast by a show of hands, personally or by proxy, or a recorded vote that is marked on a ballot cast personally or by a proxy, marked on an instrument appointing a proxy or indicated by telephonic or electronic means.
A vote for the election of directors shall only be by ballot, proxy or indicated by telephonic or electronic means. 
In the event election of the position on the board reserved for voting by non-leased units (or owner-occupied units, as applicable) is required, only those owners of non-leased voting units (or owner-occupied units, as applicable) shall be entitled to nominate and elect a person to fill such position.
Anyone who has a right to vote may demand a vote not be cast by show of hands, and upon such demand the vote shall be cast by a recorded vote that is marked on a ballot cast personally or by a proxy, marked on an instrument appointing a proxy, or indicated by telephonic or electronic means unless the demand is withdrawn before the ballots are distributed.
All voting by owners shall be on the basis of and in accordance with the Act.
When all ballots have been deposited into the ballot box the scrutineers shall then tabulate the votes for and against the matter being voted upon.
[bookmark: _Toc527026535][bookmark: _Toc5635251]Representatives
An executor, administrator, committee of a mentally incompetent person, guardian, trustee or representative of a corporate owner or mortgagee, upon filing with the secretary of the meeting sufficient proof of their appointment shall represent the owner or mortgagee at all meetings of the owners and may vote in the same manner and to the same extent as such owner. If there is more than one executor, administrator, committee, guardian or trustee, the provisions of Article 9.11 relating to co-owners shall apply.
[bookmark: _Toc527026536][bookmark: _Toc5635252]Proxies
Every owner or mortgagee entitled to vote at meetings of owners may by instrument in writing appoint a proxy (who need not be an owner, mortgagee or resident) to attend, act and/or vote at the meeting in the same manner, to the extent and with the power granted to the proxy on the proxy instrument.
The proxy instrument shall be in the prescribed form in accordance with the Act. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited with the secretary of the meeting before any vote.
Proxies shall be held in safekeeping by the registrar until delivered to the scrutineers for tabulation.
Proxies shall not be made irrevocable. The later proxy shall supersede an earlier proxy granted by an owner or mortgagee. A proxy instrument showing the latest date and time of signing shall supersede an earlier proxy or an undated proxy instrument. Only a proxy instrument signed by the owner, a mortgagee of the unit or an attorney pursuant to a valid, written power of attorney, will be deemed valid.
The Board may establish, by resolution of the Board, procedures for the depositing and registration of proxies, which shall have the same force and effect as if said procedures were part of this By-law.
[bookmark: _Ref518552334][bookmark: _Toc527026537][bookmark: _Toc5635253]Co-Owners
If a unit or a mortgage on a unit is owned by two (2) or more persons, any one of them present or represented by proxy may, in the absence of the other or others, vote, but if more than one (1) of them are present or represented by proxy, the majority of them, present at the meeting in person or by proxy, may exercise the right to vote in respect to that unit. The vote shall not be counted if two (2) or more owners or mortgagees of the unit present at the meeting are evenly divided on how to exercise the vote.
[bookmark: _Toc527026538][bookmark: _Toc5635254]Owners’ Charter of Rights and Responsibilities
Owners are expected to participate in the governing of the Corporation by abiding by the Act, the Declaration, the by-laws and the rules of the Corporation and by understanding and abiding by the Owners’ Charter of Rights and Responsibilities as set out in Schedule “B” attached to this By-law, as the same may from time to time be amended or replaced by resolution of the Board.
[bookmark: _Ref518552398][bookmark: _Toc527026539][bookmark: _Toc5635255]
ADDITIONAL RIGHTS OF THE CORPORATION
[bookmark: _Ref518552416][bookmark: _Toc527026540][bookmark: _Toc5635256]Rights of the Corporation
The contravention of any provisions of the Act, Declaration, by-laws and/or rules of the Corporation, shall give the Board, subject to its duty to act reasonably, in addition to any other rights set forth in the Act and the Declaration, the right to:
prohibit any person from using the facilities or any part of the common elements of the Corporation for any period of time that the Board, acting reasonably, determines appropriate;
upon reasonable notice to an owner, or without notice in case of emergency, enter the unit, or any part of the common elements of which the owner has exclusive use in which or with respect to which such contravention exists and to summarily abate and remove at the expense of the owner of the unit, any structure, item or condition that may exist in or about the unit or any part of the common elements contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions of the Act, Declaration, by-laws and/or rules and the Board shall not be deemed guilty of any manner of trespass;
enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any such contravention, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any proceeding for compliance pursuant to the provisions of the Act; and/or
deem all costs incurred by the Corporation pursuant to Article 10.1 to be common expenses attributable to the unit and collected in the same manner as common expenses.
[bookmark: _Ref518552547][bookmark: _Toc527026541][bookmark: _Toc5635257]Occupancy Standards
No more than two (2) persons per Sleeping Room shall reside in a dwelling unit. This standard is the “occupant load” established under the Ontario Building Code, as amended from time to time (the “Occupancy Standard”). Owners have a duty to prohibit persons from residing in their units in excess of the Occupancy Standard. A person is deemed to reside in a unit if they occupy the unit for a period of one (1) month or more, unless they provide evidence to contrary that is satisfactory to the Board in its sole discretion. For the purpose of this Article 10.2, the term “Sleeping Room” means a bedroom or other area in a dwelling unit designed for sleeping as established by the as-built building plans, architectural plans or the Corporation’s registered description. For clarity, the term “Sleeping Room” shall not include a kitchen, living room, dining room, bathroom, foyer, lobby, closet, laundry room, utility room, or pantry.
In the event that excess persons reside in the unit contrary to the Occupancy Standard, an owner shall, within fifteen (15) days of receiving written notice of the breach, eject the excess people. Where the owner fails to rectify the breach above, the Board may by resolution levy against the unit for the entire period during which the breach occurred:
an assessment for the amount, as determined by the Board, that reasonably reflects the amount by which the contravention increases the cost of maintaining the common elements and repairing them after damage; and
an assessment for the amount, as determined by the Board, that reasonably reflects the amount by which the contravention increases the cost of using the utilities that form part of the common expenses.
The Board may obtain professional condominium management, accounting, engineering and/or legal advice to assist it in determining the amounts of the aforesaid assessments.
Before levying the said assessment, the Board shall provide the owner with ten days prior written notice of its intention to levy the assessment, which notice will set out the proposed assessment amount.
[bookmark: _Toc527026542][bookmark: _Toc5635258]Non-Resident Access to Common Elements
Those persons who are not residents or guests of residents are not entitled to use any of the facilities or amenities, which are common elements and assets of the Corporation.
[bookmark: _Ref518552576][bookmark: _Toc5635259][bookmark: _Toc527026543]Indemnification and Insurance Deductible
The owner of a unit is responsible for the lesser of the amount of the deductible contained in the Corporation’s insurance policy and the cost to repair the damage to the common elements or other units incurred or to be incurred by the Corporation, that may have been caused through an act or omission by the owner or any person, thing or animal for whom or for which the owner is responsible or where the origin of the damage is from the owner’s unit.
Where damage occurs in or to a unit in the Corporation (excluding the owner’s improvements and personal belongings), and the damage is not caused by an act or omission of the Corporation, the owner of the unit where the damage occurs shall be responsible for the lesser of the amount of the deductible contained in the Corporation’s insurance policy or the cost to repair the damage.
Each owner shall indemnify and save the Corporation harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and/or costs, which the Corporation may suffer or incur resulting from, or caused through an act or omission by the owner, a lessee of an owner, a person residing in the owner’s unit with the permission or knowledge of the owner, or any other person or thing that is prescribed by the Act, including, but not limited to:
all legal costs and disbursements on a substantial indemnity basis, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, legal costs incurred to defend or respond to legal proceedings commenced by an owner, a lessee of an owner, or a person residing in the owner’s unit with the permission or knowledge of the owner where the Corporation is found to be wholly successful in such legal proceedings; and
all costs incurred by the Corporation:
0. to redress, rectify and/or obtain relief from any injury or damage;
0. by reason of breach of the Act, Declaration, by-laws and/or any rules of the Corporation in force from time to time; and/or
0. in relation to the enforcement of any rights or duties pursuant to the Act, the Declaration, the by-laws and/or the rules of the Corporation.
All amounts for which the unit owner is responsible pursuant to this Article 10.4 shall form part of the contributions to the common expenses payable for the particular unit.
[bookmark: _Ref518552662][bookmark: _Toc527026544][bookmark: _Toc5635260]
ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF COMMON EXPENSES
[bookmark: _Ref527023661][bookmark: _Ref527025055][bookmark: _Toc527026545][bookmark: _Toc5635261]Annual Budget
At least thirty (30) days before the start of each fiscal year, the Board shall prepare, in accordance with the Act, a budget for the ensuing fiscal year that covers the Corporation’s general and reserve fund accounts.
Within fifteen (15) days of preparing a budget described in Article 11.1, the Board shall provide a notice to the owners, in accordance with the Act, containing a copy of the budget.
The Board may amend a budget of the Corporation for any fiscal year at any time before the end of the fiscal year. 
Within fifteen (15) days of amending a budget the Board shall provide a notice to the owners, in accordance with the Act, containing a copy of the budget.
[bookmark: _Toc527026546][bookmark: _Toc5635262]Reserve Fund
The Board shall establish and maintain a reserve fund(s) in accordance with the Act and make sufficient provision for such reserve funding in the Corporation’s annual budget. The Corporation shall collect from the owners as part of their contributions towards common expenses amounts that the Board determines sufficient for the major repair and replacement of the units, common elements and assets of the Corporation, if the Corporation has the obligation to repair in that regard under the Act, or for any other purposes in accordance with the Act.
The reserve fund(s) shall be kept in a separate interest-bearing account with an institution in accordance with the Act and may be invested in accordance with the Act.
[bookmark: _Toc527026547][bookmark: _Toc5635263]Extraordinary Expenditures
Any expenditure not contemplated in the budget and for which the Board does not have sufficient funds, as well as any funds required to establish or augment reserves for contingencies and foreseeable or potential deficits, may be assessed at any time during the year, in addition to the annual assessment, by the Board serving notice of such further special assessments on all owners, which shall include a written statement setting out the reasons for the special assessment and any other requirements of the Act.
[bookmark: _Toc527026548][bookmark: _Toc5635264]Owners’ Obligations To Pay Assessments
Each owner shall be obliged to pay to the Corporation the amount of annual common expenses assessed against such owner’s unit, in equal monthly instalments, which shall be due and payable on the first day of each and every month throughout the fiscal year (or other period of time) to which such assessment relates, until such time as a new budget or assessment is given to the owners. Each owner shall deliver to the Corporation twelve (12) post-dated cheques or, at the option of the Corporation, execute whatever documentation is necessary to implement a pre-authorized payment plan, to permit the Corporation to debit the bank account of the owner to collect monthly instalments of common expenses.
Extraordinary assessments shall be payable by each owner within ten (10) days after the giving of notice thereof to such owner, unless a further period of time has been determined by resolution of the Board and set out in such notice.
[bookmark: _Toc527026549][bookmark: _Toc5635265]Default In Payment
Arrears of any payment required to be made under the provisions of the Act, the Declaration or by-laws shall bear interest at the rate of 18% percent per annum compounded monthly, or such other rate as the Board may by resolution determine, until payment has been received in full from the owner. Interest at the aforesaid rate shall be charged from time to time on the unpaid balance plus unpaid interest and any legal costs on a substantial indemnity basis incurred by the Corporation in the collection or attempted collection of the unpaid amount, and interest shall be charged upon the aggregate total amount monthly and shall be compounded monthly until paid.
In any collection or attempted collection proceedings, including lien proceedings and/or sale or other court proceedings instituted by the Corporation to collect common expenses, or other amounts deemed to be common expenses, from the owner, there shall be added to any amount found due all costs incurred by the Corporation and all legal costs on a substantial indemnity basis incurred in such action.
To ensure each owner contributes the owner’s proportionate share of the common expenses on a timely basis, the Corporation’s condominium manager and lawyer are hereby authorized and directed to proceed expeditiously to collect any arrears of common expenses and to execute and register such documents as may be necessary to do so.
The Corporation may apply any payment or payments made by or on behalf of an owner towards any amounts due and owing to the Corporation as at the date of payment, notwithstanding any designation, notation or direction by the owner or payor. Without limiting the foregoing, the payments received by the Corporation may be credited to the oldest amounts due and owing and not necessarily to the month when the payment is made.
[bookmark: _Toc527026550][bookmark: _Toc5635266]
BANKING ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS
[bookmark: _Toc527026551][bookmark: _Toc5635267]Banking Arrangements
The banking business of the Corporation or any part thereof shall be transacted with such bank or trust company as the Board may designate or authorize from time to time by resolution, and all such banking business, or any part thereof, shall be transacted on the Corporation’s behalf by at least two (2) people, one (1) of whom shall be a member of the Board, and another person(s), as the Board may designate or authorize from time to time by resolution specifically for the operation of the Corporation’s accounts, the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiating, lodging, depositing or transferring of any cheques, electronic payments, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and orders relating to any such banking business, and the defining of the rights and powers of the parties thereto and any act or thing on the Corporation’s behalf to facilitate such banking business.
[bookmark: _Toc527026552][bookmark: _Toc5635268]Execution of Instruments
Subject to the provisions of the Act, all deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations on behalf of the Corporation may be signed by the President or the Vice-President, together with the Secretary or any other director. Any contract or obligation within the scope of any management agreement entered into by the Corporation may be executed on behalf of the Corporation in accordance with the provisions of such management agreement. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Act, the Board may by resolution at any time and from time to time, direct the manner in which, and the person(s) by whom any particular deed, transfer, contract or obligation or any class of deeds, transfers, contracts or obligations of the Corporation may or shall be signed.
[bookmark: _Toc527026553][bookmark: _Toc5635269]Execution of Status Certificates, Certificates of Lien and Discharges of Liens, Information Certificates, Condominium Returns and Notices of Change
Status certificates, certificates and discharges of lien, information certificates, condominium returns and notices of change as required by the Act may be signed by any officer or any director of the Corporation, or any person authorized by resolution of the Board with or without the seal of the Corporation affixed thereto, provided that the Board may, by resolution, direct the manner in which, and the person(s) by whom, such certificates or documents may or shall be signed.
[bookmark: _Toc527026554][bookmark: _Toc5635270]ARTICLE 13              MISCELLANEOUS
[bookmark: _Toc527026555][bookmark: _Toc5635271]Severability
Each of the provisions of this By-law shall be deemed to be independent and severable. The invalidity of any part of this By-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance of this By-law.
[bookmark: _Toc527026556][bookmark: _Toc5635272]Waiver
No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this By-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches of this By-law which may occur.
[bookmark: _Toc527026557][bookmark: _Toc5635273]Headings
The headings in the body of this By-law form no part of it but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
[bookmark: _Toc527026558][bookmark: _Toc5635274]Amendment
This By-law or any part of it may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Declaration.
[bookmark: _Toc527026559][bookmark: _Toc5635275]Inconsistencies/Conflicts
in the case of an inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of the Act and any provision in the Declaration, by-laws or rules, the Act shall prevail;
in the case of an inconsistency or conflict between the provisions in the Declaration and any provision in the by-laws or rules, the Declaration shall prevail; and
in the event the provisions of the Act or the Declaration are silent the provisions of the by-laws shall prevail.
WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation on this ____ day of _________________, 201__.
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DIRECTORS’ CODE OF ETHICS
York Condominium Corporation No. 84
(the “Corporation”)
I have consented to act as a director of the Corporation and I agree to comply with the following Directors’ Code of Ethics throughout my term as a director:
Honesty and Good Faith - I will act honestly and in good faith. I will do nothing to violate the trust of the unit owners I serve.
Care, Diligence and Skill - I will exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person in comparable circumstances. I will make a concerted effort to attend all Board and owners’ meetings. I will act responsibly and with due diligence to become familiar with the affairs of the Corporation and to uphold its Declaration, description plans, by-laws, rules, resolutions, policies, agreements and requirements of the Condominium Act and the regulations made thereunder and other applicable legislation.
Conflict of Interest - I am not currently aware of any actual or potential conflict of interest with respect to any contract, transaction, building deficiency claim, warranty claim, legal action, proceedings or any matter detrimental to the Corporation. If I become aware of any conflict, I will immediately disclose it to the Board and provide a statement of that fact and the nature and extent of my interest. I will not promote my own interests or those of any owner, resident, family member, friend or contractor to the detriment of the Corporation. I will not seek any special benefits or privileges as a director or officer or accept any compensation either personally or on behalf of any other person except as permitted by a by-law. I will act only in the best interests of the Corporation as a whole, and I will not favour the interests of any individual or group of owners or residents.
Confidentiality - I will not disclose to any person (including my spouse) information decided by the Board to be strictly privileged and confidential or which reasonably ought to be deemed confidential, including all matters discussed at Board meetings, all documents and information unless such information or documentation is determined by the Board in writing or as evidenced by the minutes of the Corporation, not to be privileged and confidential. I will not disclose any information that is strictly privileged and confidential or which reasonably ought to be deemed confidential, obtained as a result of a director’s position on the Board. When in doubt, I will request determination by a resolution of the Board.
Good Conduct - At all times, I will conduct myself in a professional and businesslike manner at meetings of directors or owners. I will approach all Board issues with an open mind, preparing to make the best decisions on behalf of the Corporation. I will avoid shouting, interrupting, monopolizing discussions, rude comments, disruptions or dirty tricks. I will avoid ego trips. I will hold my temper. If my voice rises in pitch or volume, I will get it under control. I will act ethically with integrity and in accordance with legal criteria. I will comply with rules of good conduct and will deal with others in a respectful manner.
Support - I will abide by decisions of the majority of the directors even though I may disagree and will not deprecate directors with whom I disagree, but I reserve the right to express my own views to owners upon non-confidential issues.
Defamation - I will refrain from expressing any detrimental supposition, erroneous or defamatory statement about the Corporation or any owner, resident, director, officer, manager, staff or contractor of the Corporation. I shall only publicly state detrimental information in a manner which is accurate, unbiased and non-malicious.
Dirty Tricks - I will not use any “dirty tricks” in the course of an election, but will act honestly, honourably, fairly and in a straight-forward manner. I shall not seek election as a director by trashing the reputation of any other person.
Abuse of Proxies - When collecting proxies, I will not make any false, misleading, fraudulent or defamatory statement. I will fairly inform the proxy grantor how I intend to exercise any vote with respect to the proxy.
Minimize Conflict - I will attempt to prevent or minimize conflict and disruption and will promote good relations amongst persons involved in our condominium community. I will promote a first class image for our Corporation, its units, owners and residents.
Performance of Duties - I will commit the necessary efforts, will exercise the appropriate leadership and will assume such duties as may reasonably be required to fulfill my role as a director or officer. I will participate in conducting the Board’s business in the form of resolutions, policies, rules or by-laws as the circumstances require. I will comply with principles of good governance and procedural rules of order. I will become well-informed on issues and agenda items in advance of meetings. I will assist the Board to supervise, monitor and direct the on-going daily management of the Corporation by the condominium manager. I will duly consider the information and advice provided by the condominium manager and others and will seek opinions, when appropriate, from experienced professionals when necessary to reach a proper decision. I will follow the precept: “directors direct; managers manage.”
Monitor Financial Health - I will pay particular attention to monitor the financial health, physical state of maintenance and repair, management, administration, appearance and welfare of the Corporation. I will support required funding of the reserve fund and an appropriate funding plan to fulfill the criteria of the Corporation’s reserve fund study. I will assist in preparing or reviewing the Corporation’s annual budget in a manner which appropriately reflects the actual financial needs of the Corporation, regardless of owners’ complaints when it becomes necessary to increase common expenses. I will ensure common expenses are collected on time or liened within the statutory period. I will monitor the investments, bank accounts, interim and year-end financial statements. I will carefully review contract proposals, quotes and tenders in order to assist in negotiating preferred contractual terms for services rendered to the Corporation at a beneficial cost. I will monitor any of such duties which have been delegated.
Scope of Authority - If I am elected or appointed as the President, Secretary, Treasurer or other officer of the Board, I will refrain from autocratic governance, but will act properly within the scope of my authority and in response to the will of the Board. I will never exercise authority as a Board member except when acting in a meeting of the Board or as I am delegated to do by the Board.
Education – I will comply with the director’s training requirement under the Condominium Act. Recognizing that governance of a condominium corporation involves complex and changing requirements. I will continue to educate myself throughout my term as director. I will support attendance by one or more Board members at any condominium seminars presented by the Canadian Condominium Institute (CCI and/or the Community Associations Institute (CAI) at the cost of the Corporation.

[bookmark: _Ref518552359]
OWNERS’ CHARTER OF RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Owners are encouraged to participate democratically and ethically in the affairs of the Corporation as follows:
Owners are encouraged to participate in owners’ meetings where important decisions and recommendations are often made that may substantially affect your condominium environment, the value of your unit and the quality of lifestyle at your condominium.
Since the Board of directors is solely responsible to make the vast majority of decisions for the Corporation you should carefully select the candidates you wish to be elected as directors.
It is strongly recommended that owners attend meetings of owners instead of blindingly signing proxy forms. Only appoint as your proxy a person you know, respect and trust.
Do not be swayed by undocumented allegations made during proxy solicitations or in newsletters, unless you are satisfied the information is accurate. Act judicially and hear all sides of the story before voting.
Directorial candidates must comply with their statutory standard of care, diligence and skill and their duty of honesty and good faith. Directors must undertake necessary maintenance and repairs of the common elements and assets and ensure proper funding of the Corporation’s reserve fund, in addition to numerous other duties contained in the Act, Declaration, by-laws and rules of the Corporation. Common expense increases are inevitable as buildings age. Support directors who establish a forward-looking funding plan which calls for necessary common expense increases to avoid special assessments if appropriate.
Recognize the contributions of volunteer directors who have the skills, qualifications, experience and commitment to protect the owners’ best interests, enhance unit values, supervise management of the Corporation’s affairs in a financially responsible manner and promote a harmonious atmosphere.
In a democracy, legitimate criticisms can be expressed where a critic has undertaken the due diligence to ascertain the accuracy of negative statements. Before accepting the validity of accusations, unfounded conjecture, innuendo or other techniques of fear-mongering, owners should question the accuracy of such information and the use of those techniques, especially when attacks on directors are made on a self-serving basis by persons attempting to get themselves elected. Candidates who promise cost savings or other improvements should be asked to provide detailed explanations as to how they can be achieved.
At law, any person who originates, repeats or publishes a libellous or slanderous statement or a rumour which is erroneous and defames the reputation of a person is personally liable for damages, subject to the burden of proof to uphold one of the defences of (a) justification (i.e. proving the truth of the allegation) (b) qualified privilege (where a person has a special duty to make such a statement bona fide and in good faith, if the defamer can prove no malice is present); or (c) fair comment (where a defamer renders a bona fide opinion based upon true facts after conducting due diligence, if the defamer can prove no malice is present).









YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84

STANDARD UNIT

BY-LAW # 18





[bookmark: _Hlk17912449]YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
(THE “CORPORATION”)
STANDARD UNIT
BY-LAW NO. 18

A By-law that identifies the standard unit for the purposes of sections 89 and 99 of the Condominium Act, 1998 (the “Act”)
PREAMBLE:
   Pursuant to subsection 89(2) of the Act each owner shall repair the owner’s unit;
Pursuant to subsection 99(4) of the Act the obligation of a condominium corporation to obtain and maintain insurance does not include insurance for damage to improvements made to a unit;
Each unit owner is responsible to insure any improvements to their unit;
Any part of a unit, where the part does not constitute a standard unit or part of a standard unit is considered to be an improvement;
Pursuant to section 56(1)(h) of the Act, a by-law may be passed to determine what constitutes an improvement to a unit by reference to a standard unit definition; 
For the purposes of defining what constitutes a standard unit, the Corporation has one class of standard unit, as defined herein;
Pursuant to Section 105(3) of the Act, the Corporation may, by by-law, extend the circumstances in which, following damage, a unit owner would be responsible for the cost of the insurance deductible applicable to the repair of their unit or units, and of the common elements and other units.
BE IT ENACTED as a By-law of the Corporation as follows:
By-law No. 15 of York Condominium Corporation No. 84 is hereby repealed.
The boundaries of the units are as defined in Schedule “B” of the Corporation’s declaration. This By-law does not amend or affect any definitions set out in the Corporation’s declaration or any obligations or responsibilities set out therein.
For the purposes of this By-law, the Corporation has only one class of standard unit. 
The standard unit for all units shall not consist of any components, finishes, or items.
The purpose of this By-law and the definition of standard unit herein is to clearly establish that there are no components within the unit which form part of the standard unit. All components of the unit are considered and defined to be “Improvements” and as such, are the sole and exclusive responsibility of the unit owners to properly and adequately insure and repair after damage. The Corporation has no obligations whatsoever with respect to any Improvements.
For greater clarity, unit owners shall be responsible to maintain and repair, and repair after damage, all Improvements and shall insure them with customary coverage provided to condominium unit owners. The Corporation may request in writing from a unit owner and the unit owner shall provide to the Corporation within ten days after receipt of such request, a copy of the owner’s insurance policy or other sufficient evidence that the Improvements are insured. Any repairs, maintenance and or servicing to be conducted by a unit owner in respect of their respective unit shall only be performed by an accredited professional.
Nothing in this By-law shall relieve any unit owner of any obligation to maintain, repair and when necessary, replace any component of their unit as may be set out in the Act and the Corporation’s declaration, By-laws and rules.
Pursuant to subsections 105(2) and (3) of the Act, the owner of a unit is responsible for the lesser of the amount of the deductible contained in the Corporation’s insurance policy and the cost to repair the damage to the common elements or other units, that may have been caused through an act or omission by the owner or any person, thing or animal for whom or for which the owner is responsible, or where the origin of the damage is from the owner’s unit.
Each owner shall indemnify and save the Corporation harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and/or costs (including the Corporation’s insurance deductible and its legal costs on a substantial indemnity basis), which the Corporation may suffer or incur as a result of, or in connection with, any act or omission by the owner or any person, thing or animal for whom or for which the owner is responsible, or where the origin is from the owner’s unit that causes any damage to the owner’s unit and/or the common elements (or any portion thereof) and/or to any other units, except for any claims, damages, losses, liabilities and/or costs that are insured against by the Corporation, subject to the insurance deductible.
All amounts for which the unit owner is responsible pursuant to this by-law shall form part of the contributions to the common expenses payable for the particular unit.
Each of the provisions of this By-law shall be deemed to be independent and severable. The invalidity of any part of this By-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance of this By-law.
No provision contained in this By-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches of this By-law which may incur.
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STANDARD UNITS RESOLUTION 
THIS RESOLUTION DOES NOT REQUIRE VOTING
[bookmark: _Hlk6904620]Whereas the Standard Unit by-law satisfies the legal requirements it is however quit brief. For clarification the Board of Directors accepts this resolution to clarify, in detail, concerned elements itemized in three categories Standard Unit – i) Member Owned and Insured; ii) Condominium Corporation Owned and Insured But For Member Maintenance/Restore/Replacement; and, iii) Condominium Corporation Owned and Insured
For each addition, alteration and improvement the member must provide ongoing insurance for all personal injuries resulting from an addition, alteration or improvement.



1. STANDARD UNIT – MEMBER OWNED AND INSURED
0. All free-standing/not bearing walls
0. Flooring – all flooring above the sub-floor and the surface of the basement and garage floors
0. Cabinetry and counters 
1. Kitchen
1. Bathrooms (vanity, medicine cabinet, etc.
1. Laundry room
1. Etc.
0. Electrical systems emanating from the fuse/circuit breaker box 
1. Fuses and circuit breakers are member owned 
1. Declarant electrical wiring mainly aluminum wire
0. Plumbing network/systems within the townhouse
1. Hot water generating system (electric, gas, etc.)
0. All in-house plaster board on walls and ceilings
1. Painting, panelling/tiles. coverings on walls
0. Basement walls are poured concrete and cinder block. Floors are poured concrete. Inside
these are the member’s premises
0. Attic insulation
0. Venting systems and associated duct systems
1. Kitchen
1. Bathrooms
1. Clothes dryer
1. Etc.
0. In-house heating systems
1. Electric
1. Gas
1. Etc.
0. Outside water taps
1. Back patio area
1. In garage – as installed by the declarant
0. Large front vehicle access GARAGE DOOR, mechanics and tracks
1. The member is responsible for ongoing maintenance, repairs and replacement of springs, tracks and any other mechanisms.
1. The member is responsible for maintenance and repair of the large garage door 
1. The Corporation is responsible for periodic painting and paint colour selection of this door with costs being part of the member’s monthly fee
1. At the expense of the member the member is responsible for maintaining this door and repairs to this door. The Corporation has the right to require maintenance, repairs and/or replacement dependent on the condition of the door. While the member has these responsibilities, it is the Corporation which must purchase replacement and installation of these new doors from its supplier
1. At the expense of the member replacement of this door is the responsibility of the Corporation, Door style and colour are the responsibility of the Corporation
0. [bookmark: _Hlk7078624]Side Garage Door – The member owns this door and door frame.
1. The Corporation is responsible for painting the exterior of this door. 
1. There is a rule for the member to replacing this door at the member’s expense.
0.  Garbage Room Door - The member owns this door and door frame.
1. The Corporation is responsible for painting the exterior of this door. 
1. There is a rule for the member to replacing this door at the member’s expense.
0. Front House Access Door
The front house access door has two components
1. [bookmark: _Hlk7079250]The door including its frame as well as the bottom weather strip
1. The side glass panel including its frame
0. Back Doors from the Back Patio into the House
1. Units in rows 12 to 26; 62 to 72 and 53 to 65
The member owns the sliding door, side glass panel and the frame for these as well as the bottom weather strip
1. All other units, the access door, living room window and their frames 
1. The stud between the door and window 
1. Window sills
0. Window sills
0. The front door glass panel storm window
0. All house windows and doors; and their screens; and casings
0. Door bell(s) and the door bell systems
0. Bathtub(s), shower(s), sinks, vanities
0. Member installed unit walkways along the length of and adjacent to the unit’s driveway
0. Porch coverings and painting
0. Member installed unit’s front and unit’s back gardens (plants & shrubs, etc.) and garden
        Boarders
The declarant graded the land so that there was no need for retaining walls between units. Members altered patios and gardens which in some cases necessitated a retain wall to prevent wash out. These retaining walls are the members as well as all responsibility for them.
 
                                                                                                                                                                                            
1. CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION OWNED & INSURED
                                          BUT FOR
MEMBER MAINTENANCE/RESTORE/REPLACEMENT

1. On garbage room door a door hung mail box
1. Front porch – poured concrete without and covering or painting
1. Outside light over the front porch
1. Outside vertical wall single light on the back wall beside the back door
1. Units having back door pre-cast steps (units’ rows 9 to 27; 29 to 51; 7 to 10; 28 to 44; 44 to 60; and, 67 to 79) from the back door to the back patio are responsible for maintaining and replacing these steps.
The “Riser” portion of the front porch step and from the patio and the steps from the back patio to the back door may not exceed 7 7/8 inches in height and the riser for all steps in a series of steps must be of equal height.
1. Front and back patios
Member modified front and back exclusive use common element patios – virtually each of these has been member modified.
2.7 Front and back patio area plant and shrubs; and, garden boarders.

                                                                                                                                                                                            

1. CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION OWNED AND INSURED

2. All exteriors of buildings
2. Inside declarant installed staircases
2. Main water line going between units (found in the basement ceiling)
2. Main water line shut-off tap/valve for water within the unit, At units 10, 26, 27, 28, 51, 60, 62, 65 and 67 main water line shut-off tap/valve for water within the unit
2. Electrical system into each unit’s electrical panel
2. Inside each unit the electrical panel exclusive of fuses and circuit breakers
2. Internal bearing walls
2. Floor joists
2. Internal sub-floors
2. Concrete basement and garage floor from the concrete surface down
2. Walls between units and end walls
2. In nine (9) end units the in-basement mechanical system for controlling that block’s water system 
2. Side outside water taps at units 9, 27, 29, 53, 65, 67, 60, 10 and 28
The Corporation’s ownership is from the “T” or “U” joint feeding the outside water tap. This “T” or “U” joint also belongs to the Corporation
2. Unit driveway
2. Back patio – privacy screens
2. Exterior painting (inclusive of the large garage door, side garaged doo and the garbage room door
2. Window sill plates
2. All in garage plaster board walls and ceiling (unfinished)
2. Attic(s) – except for the bathroom vent and its duct this/these are not for member/resident use (e.g. install mechanical equipment; such as, heat pump, compressor, etc.); nor, is/are it/they for member/resident storage.
Other than replacing/enhancing the attic insulation, bathroom vent and duct a member/resident is not to modify, improve; or, make an addition to the attic(s) space(s)
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BY-LAW NO. 20 
MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION
YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
A By-law to establish procedures with respect to the mediation and arbitration of disputes described in Sections 125 and 132 of the Condominium Act, 1998. 
In addition to those words, terms and/or phrases specifically defined in this by-law, the words, terms and/or phrases used herein which are defined in the Condominium Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, C.19 as amended and the regulations made thereunder (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) and in the declaration of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Declaration”) shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act or the Declaration, unless the context requires otherwise.
RECITALS:
Except for matters in dispute for which a person may apply for resolution to the Condominium Authority Tribunal, the Act intends that all Parties described in Sections 125 and 132 resolve disputes which may arise between them through mediation and arbitration;
Pursuant to section 56(1) of the Act, a by-law may be passed to establish the procedures for mediation and arbitration of disputes;
The Corporation intends that procedures in this By-law be deemed incorporated into the agreements and documents, including any question of law or equity, described in Sections 125 and 132 of the Act and that these procedures be employed for all disputes.
1. [bookmark: _Toc493157616][bookmark: _Toc382814108]
GENERAL
[bookmark: _Toc493157617][bookmark: _Toc382814109]Disputes
Disputes relating to the breach, termination, existence, validity, performance, interpretation or enforceability of any of the agreements listed in Section 132(2) of the Act or disputes contemplated in Section 125 of the Act, other than: (i) those for which a person may apply for resolution to the Condominium Authority Tribunal; and (ii) those which must be resolved in the Courts, shall be addressed and resolved in accordance with the provisions of this By-law.
[bookmark: _Toc493157618][bookmark: _Toc382814110]Definitions
Arbitration – means a process whereby an independent third party (the arbitrator) hears a dispute between two or more parties and makes a determination of the rights and obligations of the parties.
days – means business days, unless otherwise noted.
Deliver (Delivers, Delivery, and Delivered) – means serving, giving to or delivering any notice or document to a Party pursuant to Article 1.3(a) of this By-law.
Mediation – means the process by which two or more parties to a dispute meet with an independent third party with a view to reach a settlement of the dispute.
Party – means any person or corporate entity named as a Party in relation to a dispute in a notice of mediation or notice of arbitration. For the purposes of paying costs and for delivery/service of documents pursuant to this By-law, co-owners who have not given the Corporation notice of separate addresses for service shall be deemed to be one Party.
Recipient – means the person to whom a notice or document has been Delivered in accordance with this By-law.
[bookmark: _Toc493157619][bookmark: _Toc382814111]Delivery/Service of Documents
[bookmark: _Ref527033797]All notices and documents required to be Delivered or provided shall be Delivered:
to an owner in accordance with subsection 47(4) of the Act; 
to a mortgagee in accordance with subsection 47(5) of the Act; 
to the Corporation:
sent by prepaid mail to,
the address for service of,
the corporation,
the condominium management provider or the condominium manager, if any, or
any other person responsible for the management of the property, or
an address that the board has, by resolution, decided is an address for receiving delivery of the request;
sent by courier delivery to an address described in clause (a) that is capable of receiving courier delivery;
deposited in the mail box for an address described in clause (a); or
sent by facsimile transmission, electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the board has, by resolution, decided that it is a method for receiving delivery of documents.
and to all other Parties either:
personally;
by pre-paid mail;
by pre-paid registered post;
by facsimile transmission; or
electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the Party agrees in writing that the Party giving the notice or document may give the notice or document in this manner.
If a Party is represented by an agent or solicitor, any document to be Delivered to that Party may be Delivered to that Party’s agent or solicitor in accordance with Article 1.3(a).
Notices and documents will be deemed to have been received the day of personal delivery, facsimile transmission or electronic communication and for Delivery by pre-paid mail and registered post, two (2) days after posting or registration thereof.
[bookmark: _Toc493157620][bookmark: _Toc382814112]Confidentiality; Without Prejudice
Settlement efforts and statements made by the Parties during negotiation, mediation and/or arbitration shall, in all respects, be kept confidential and shall be strictly without prejudice.
[bookmark: _Toc493157621][bookmark: _Toc382814113][bookmark: _Ref527034094][bookmark: _Ref527034098][bookmark: _Ref527034109]
NEGOTIATION
The Corporation and owners shall use their best efforts to resolve any disputes which may arise between them, through good faith negotiations (subject to compliance with the provisions of the Act, Declaration, By-laws and Rules) and shall resort to mediation, arbitration or legal proceedings only after attempts fail to clarify, resolve and minimize the scope of any issues in dispute.
[bookmark: _Toc493157622][bookmark: _Toc382814114][bookmark: _Ref527034119]
MEDIATION
[bookmark: _Toc493157623][bookmark: _Toc382814115]Notice of Mediation and Selection of Mediator
A notice of mediation may be Delivered by any Party to the other Party or Parties and shall include:
a statement that the Party has made a good faith effort to reach a settlement in accordance with Article 2;
the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as mediator, who have indicated a willingness to act as mediator, ranked in order of preference;
a statement of any facts agreed by all Parties, if any; and
a written statement of the Party’s position.
[bookmark: _Ref527033900]Within ten days after receipt of a notice of mediation the Recipients shall each Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as mediator, who have indicated a willingness to act as mediator, ranked in order of preference and each Recipient shall include a written statement of the Recipient’s position.
For purposes of Section 132 of the Act, a dispute will be deemed to be submitted to mediation by the Parties on the day the Recipient or Recipients each Delivers to the other Party or Parties the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as mediator.
The Parties shall unanimously appoint, from the names submitted, a mediator who shall be a qualified and experienced mediator.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the notice of mediation is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the notice of mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Parties.
The Party who Delivered the notice of mediation, must notify the mediator of their appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other Party or Parties may Deliver to all the Parties a notice stating that the mediation has failed and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be borne by the Parties.
[bookmark: _Toc493157624][bookmark: _Toc382814116]Role of Mediator
The mediator’s role is to assist the Parties in resolving the dispute in accordance with the procedures set out in this By-law. The mediator will not make decisions for the Parties about how the matter should or must be resolved.
If the mediator selected by the Parties is a qualified lawyer, they will not provide legal representation or legal advice to either Party.
The mediator has no duty to assert or protect the legal rights of any Party, to raise any issue not raised by the Parties themselves, or to determine who should participate in the mediation.
In the event that the Parties are unable, with the assistance of the mediator, to settle the dispute, the mediator shall Deliver a notice to the Parties that the mediation has failed.
[bookmark: _Toc493157625][bookmark: _Toc382814117]Location and Time of Mediation
The time and place of the mediation shall be determined by the mediator in consultation with the Parties and the mediator will promptly advise the Parties of the location and time of the mediation and the estimated cost of the mediation.
[bookmark: _Toc493157626][bookmark: _Toc382814118]Mediation Brief
Each Party shall submit to the mediator and all other Parties, at least five (5) days before the mediation date, a written mediation brief of not more than ten (10) pages, single spaced on 8½” by 11” paper, plus exhibits (if any), setting out the relevant facts and the Party’s positions concerning the matters in the dispute.
[bookmark: _Toc493157627][bookmark: _Toc382814119]Fees and Expenses
[bookmark: _Ref527033926]Each Party shall Deliver to the mediator, with its mediation brief, or no later than twenty-four (24) hours before the commencement of the mediation, a certified cheque payable to the mediator for such Party’s proportionate share, based on the number of parties to the mediation, of the mediator’s estimated fees and expenses of the mediation.
Fees and expenses of the mediation shall be borne as specified in a settlement, if a settlement is obtained. If no settlement is obtained, the mediator’s fees and expenses shall be borne as specified in the mediator’s notice stating that the mediation has failed.
If a Party fails to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 3.5(a), the mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator will issue a notice stating that the mediation has failed and which Party or Parties failed to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 3.5(a).
A Party who has failed to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 3.5(a) may not Deliver a notice of arbitration unless that Party has withdrawn from the mediation in accordance with Article 3.7(a).
If a Party who has Delivered to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 3.5(a) when a Party has not complied with Article 3.5(a), and the mediator deducts an amount for fees from the certified cheque provided in accordance with Article 3.5(a), the Party who has complied with Article 3.5(a) may add amounts paid to the mediator to the dispute.
[bookmark: _Toc493157628][bookmark: _Toc382814120]Authority to Settle and Legal Representation
The Parties or representatives of the Parties with full unqualified authority to settle the dispute shall attend the mediation in person.
The Parties are entitled to seek legal representation or advice prior to and during the mediation and may have lawyers present at the mediation who shall be permitted to fully participate in all aspects of the mediation.
[bookmark: _Toc493157629][bookmark: _Toc382814121]Withdrawal from Mediation
[bookmark: _Ref527033978]After the commencement of the mediation any Party and/or the mediator may withdraw from the mediation.
If a Party or the mediator has withdrawn from the mediation in accordance with Article 3.7(a), the mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator shall issue a notice stating that the mediation has failed.
[bookmark: _Toc493157630][bookmark: _Toc382814122][bookmark: _Ref527034248]Termination of Mediation
The mediation shall end on the earlier of:
the date that the Parties enter into a binding settlement agreement with respect to all or a part of the matters in dispute;
the date the mediator issues a notice stating that the mediation has failed;
the date that any Party or the mediator withdraws from the mediation, in accordance with Article 3.7(a); and
sixty (60) days after the Parties submitted their dispute to mediation if in that time they failed to select a mediator.
[bookmark: _Toc493157631][bookmark: _Toc382814123][bookmark: _Ref527034192][bookmark: _Ref527034198][bookmark: _Ref527034209]
ARBITRATION
[bookmark: _Toc493157632][bookmark: _Toc382814124]Application
If all or part of the matters in a dispute are not resolved or settled through the procedures provided under ARTICLE 2 and ARTICLE 3, the remaining matters of the dispute shall be determined by final and binding arbitration conducted by a single arbitrator in accordance with the procedures provided in this ARTICLE 4. Except as otherwise provided in this ARTICLE 4, the arbitration of the dispute, including its procedures, decision and enforcement, shall be in accordance with the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario) and any amended or successor legislation and the other applicable laws of the Province of Ontario regarding arbitration and the enforcement of arbitral awards (collectively, the “Arbitration Act”) and any applicable federal laws of Canada.
[bookmark: _Toc493157633][bookmark: _Toc382814125]Notice of Arbitration
Any Party, except a Party who has failed to deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 3.5(a), may initiate the arbitration by Delivering a written notice of arbitration:
sixty (60) days after the Parties submitted their dispute to mediation if the Parties failed to select a mediator; or
thirty (30) days after the mediator selected Delivers a notice stating that the mediation has failed.
The Notice of Arbitration shall include:
a brief description of the issues to be arbitrated;
the names of the Parties involved in the dispute;
a statement indicating the date that mediation was terminated in accordance with Article 3.8 hereof; and
the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as arbitrator, who have indicated a willingness to act as arbitrator, ranked in order of preference.
[bookmark: _Toc493157634][bookmark: _Toc382814126][bookmark: _Ref527034270][bookmark: _Ref527034276]The Arbitrator
The arbitrator shall be either:
a member of the ADR Institute of Ontario; or
a Canadian former judge who carries on business as a professional arbitrator and who is based in Ontario.
The arbitrator shall be impartial and independent of the Parties to the dispute and shall, if requested, confirm to the Parties that they have no current or past relationship of any kind with any of the Parties that might give rise to justifiable doubts as to their impartiality.
Within five (5) days of receipt of a notice of arbitration the Recipients shall each Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as the arbitrator, who have indicated a willingness to act as arbitrator, ranked in order of preference. Such Recipients shall include a brief description of any additional or further issues to be arbitrated.
The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10) days of Delivery of the notice of arbitration, an arbitrator from the names submitted. The arbitrator shall be qualified and experienced to act as an arbitrator.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of an arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the notice of arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the notice of arbitration and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the arbitrators submitted by the Parties.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with this Article 4.3, such Party shall be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person selected, by the other Party or Parties, in accordance with this Article 4.3.
[bookmark: _Toc493157635][bookmark: _Toc382814127]Location and Time of Arbitration
The place and time of the arbitration shall be determined by the arbitrator in consultation with the Parties and the arbitrator will promptly advise the Parties of the location, time for commencement, schedule for and estimated cost of the arbitration.
[bookmark: _Toc493157636][bookmark: _Toc382814128]Arbitration Brief
Except as otherwise provided in accordance with Article 4.11(b), within ten (10) days after the date of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a written arbitration brief which shall set forth each Party’s position concerning the matters in dispute and shall include:
a statement of fact and law;
copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Party’s control;
[bookmark: _Ref527034363]a statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the documents included in the brief are all the documents relevant to the dispute that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents that are or might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and
a statement of the relief sought.
[bookmark: _Toc493157637][bookmark: _Toc382814129][bookmark: _Ref527034354]Fees and Expenses
[bookmark: _Ref527034319]Each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator, with their arbitration brief, or no later than 24 hours before the commencement of the arbitration, a certified cheque payable to the arbitrator for such Party’s pro rata share of the arbitrator’s estimated fees and expenses of the arbitration.
The fees and expenses of the arbitration shall be borne as specified in the arbitrator’s award subject to Article 4.12(b).
If a Party fails to Deliver to the arbitrator a certified cheque in accordance with Article 4.6(a), the arbitrator may continue the arbitration and make an award on the evidence before them except that the arbitrator may not take into account any documents, briefs or evidence provided by the Party who failed to pay fees in accordance with Article 4.6(a).
If the Party who fails to Deliver a certified cheque to the arbitrator in accordance with Article 4.6(a) is the Party who commenced the arbitration, the arbitrator may make an award dismissing the claim.
[bookmark: _Toc493157638][bookmark: _Toc382814130]Additional Parties
Upon reviewing the notice of arbitration and arbitration briefs, the Arbitrator may make a request of the Parties that another Party or Parties be joined in the arbitration. Any other Party or Parties may only be joined with that Party’s consent and the consent of the original Parties to the dispute. Subject to the arbitrator’s award as specified in Article 4.12(b), and notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the additional Parties shall not be required to bear the fees and expenses of the arbitrator as provided for in Article 4.6.
[bookmark: _Toc493157639][bookmark: _Toc382814131]Hearing
The arbitration shall be an oral hearing, conducted in the English language, unless the Parties and the arbitrator agree otherwise, and shall consist of examination in chief and cross examination of witnesses under oath, and oral arguments to be presided over by the arbitrator.  Except for the statutory declaration provided pursuant to Article 4.5(c), there shall be no oral or documentary discovery under oath. To reduce the expense of the arbitration process no formal transcribing or recording of evidence shall be undertaken unless all Parties to the dispute agree,  and also agree to the payment of all costs and expenses associated therewith.  Any of the Parties and/or the arbitrator may have a recording device present to assist in confirming what evidence has been submitted and to monitor the general conduct of the proceedings.
[bookmark: _Toc493157640][bookmark: _Toc382814132]Representation
The Parties are entitled to be represented and assisted by legal counsel in connection with all aspects of the arbitration and any Party’s legal counsel shall be permitted to attend and fully participate in all aspects of the arbitration.
[bookmark: _Toc493157641][bookmark: _Toc382814133]Duration of Arbitration
Subject to the arbitrator’s ability to alter the duration and timing of the arbitration in accordance with Article 4.11(a) and (b), the hearing shall begin not more than thirty (30) days after the arbitration notice is Delivered and shall be conducted over no more than five (5) consecutive business days whereby:
each Party shall be given a maximum of two (2) full business days to present their case to the arbitrator;
the arbitrator shall have the discretion to regulate, among other things, the length of a Party’s cross examination of the other Party’s witnesses to ensure the fair and equal treatment of all Parties with regard to the time limits of the hearing; and
on the fifth (5th) business day of the hearing or earlier, each Party shall be given the opportunity to present oral and written arguments to the arbitrator.
[bookmark: _Toc493157642][bookmark: _Toc382814134]Powers of the Arbitrator
[bookmark: _Ref527034427]Subject to Article 4.11(b), the arbitrator shall have the discretion to determine all procedural matters, including but not limited to those relating to evidence, witnesses, timing and duration of the hearing, documents and interpreters, and may require the Parties to attend at a preliminary meeting, which may be held by teleconference, to discuss and determine any procedural matters that, in the discretion of the arbitrator, should be determined prior to the commencement of the arbitration hearing.
[bookmark: _Ref527034286]In the event that a Party, within five (5) days of the appointment of the arbitrator, requests additional time to prepare an arbitration brief from the arbitrator and provides a reason for such request, the arbitrator shall have the discretion to grant such Party additional time to Deliver an arbitration brief which the arbitrator believes is reasonably necessary to prepare and Deliver such arbitration brief. The arbitrator shall advise the Parties in writing with respect to the amount of additional time granted to the Party to Deliver an arbitration brief.
The arbitrator may make whatever award they consider just having regard to the dispute, the interest of the Parties, the Act, the regulations, the agreement, the declaration, the By-laws and the rules and may do one or more of the following:
order an amendment to any document in dispute between the Parties, said amendment to be effective as between the Parties to the arbitration;
order a Party to do something;
order a Party to refrain from doing something;
order a Party to pay money as damages, compensation or reimbursement; and
any other order as may be permitted by the Arbitration Act.
[bookmark: _Toc493157643][bookmark: _Toc382814135]The Arbitrator’s Award
The arbitrator shall be required to make an award, in writing, signed by the arbitrator, within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the hearing and a copy of the award is to be Delivered to the Parties in accordance with this By-law.
[bookmark: _Ref527034305]The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding. The arbitrator shall include reasons for the award.
The arbitrator’s award may include an order for costs, specifying the Party or Parties entitled to costs, the Party or Parties who must pay the costs, the amount of the costs and the manner of payment.  If the arbitrator does not make an order respecting costs, a Party may, within twenty (20) days after being notified of the award, apply to the arbitrator for an order respecting costs. If no application is made to the arbitrator within the said time frame for an order respecting costs or, if following any such application the arbitrator does not make an order respecting costs, then subject to any agreement to the contrary, the Parties must bear their own costs of the fees and disbursements of the arbitrator in equal shares.
An arbitrator’s award and/or order for costs may be filed in the Superior Court of Justice and, on being filed, will have the same effect as if it was an order of the Superior Court of Justice. Once filed, proceedings may be taken on both the award and/or the order for costs.
[bookmark: _Toc493157644][bookmark: _Toc382814136]Defence to Action
Other than an action to enforce the award of the arbitrator, the provisions of this By-law represent a complete defence to any suit, action or other proceeding instituted in any Court or before any administrative tribunal with respect to any dispute. Nothing in this By-law prevents the Parties from exercising any other rights they may have pursuant to the Act, the regulations, the agreements described in Section 132(2) of the Act, the declaration, the By-laws or the rules.
[bookmark: _Toc493157645][bookmark: _Toc382814137]
MISCELLANEOUS
[bookmark: _Toc493157646][bookmark: _Toc382814138]Severability
Each of the provisions of this By-law shall be deemed to be independent and severable.  The invalidity of any part of this By-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance of this By-law.
[bookmark: _Toc493157647][bookmark: _Toc382814139]Waiver
No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this By-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches of this By-law which may occur.
[bookmark: _Toc493157648][bookmark: _Toc382814140]
FORMS
[bookmark: _Toc493157649][bookmark: _Toc382814141]Forms
Precedent forms are attached to this By-law as Schedule “A” through Schedule “D”. These forms may be used by any Party for purposes of the procedures contained in this Mediation and Arbitration By-law. These forms need not be used and may be altered, if required, to meet the circumstances of a specific situation. The forms attached include:
Schedule “A” Notice of Mediation;
Schedule “B” Response to Notice of Mediation;
Schedule “C” Notice of Arbitration; and
Schedule “D” Response to Notice of Arbitration.
WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation this      day of                        , 201__.
[bookmark: _Hlk18130346]
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NOTICE OF MEDIATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
I/We, [insert name of party giving notice] have made a good faith effort to reach a settlement of the dispute through negotiation.
Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
Statement of Facts Agreed by All Parties, if any:

Statement of Position:

Documents:
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the document’s creation, its author and a brief summary of its contents.)

	DOCUMENTS

	DATE
	AUTHOR
	BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



	

	(Signature)



Each Recipient of this Notice of Mediation shall Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as Mediator, who have indicated a willingness to act Mediator, ranked in order of preference and each Recipient shall include a written statement of their position.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Parties.
The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must notify the mediator of their appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the Mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other Party or Parties shall Deliver to all the Parties a Notice stating that the mediation has failed and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be borne by the Parties.


RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF MEDIATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
Note: You may propose a mediator who has been proposed by another Party.
Statement of Position:

Documents:
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the document’s creation, its author and a brief summary of its contents.)
	DOCUMENTS

	DATE
	AUTHOR
	BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



	

	(Signature)



If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Parties.
The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must notify the mediator of their appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the Mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other Party or Parties may Deliver to all the Parties a Notice stating that the mediation has failed and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be borne by the Parties.









NOTICE OF ARBITRATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO: 	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
	This matter is proceeding to arbitration because: (place an “X” in the appropriate response)
(  )	sixty (60) days have passed from the date of the Notice of Mediation, a copy of which is attached hereto and the Parties have not selected a mediator; or
(  )	thirty (30) days have passed from the Delivery of the mediator’s notice indicating that the mediation has failed. A copy of the mediator’s notice is attached hereto.
Proposed Arbitrators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>

	

	(Signature)



The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10) days of Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration, an arbitrator from the names submitted. The arbitrator shall be qualified and experienced to act as an arbitrator.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of an arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Arbitration and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the arbitrators submitted by the Parties.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with this Section, such Party shall be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person selected, by the other Party or Parties, in accordance with this Section.
Within ten (10) days after the date of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a written arbitration brief which shall set forth each Party’s position concerning the matters in dispute and shall include:
(a)	a statement of fact and law;
(b)	copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Party’s control;
(c)	a statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the documents included in the brief are all the documents relevant to the dispute that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents that are or might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and
(d)	a statement of the relief sought.







NOTICE OF MEDIATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
I/We, [insert name of party giving notice] have made a good faith effort to reach a settlement of the dispute through negotiation.
Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
Statement of Facts Agreed by All Parties, if any:

Statement of Position:

Documents:
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the document’s creation, its author and a brief summary of its contents.)

	DOCUMENTS

	DATE
	AUTHOR
	BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



	

	(Signature)



Each Recipient of this Notice of Mediation shall Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two (2) qualified individuals to act as Mediator, who have indicated a willingness to act Mediator, ranked in order of preference and each Recipient shall include a written statement of their position.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Parties.
The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must notify the mediator of their appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the Mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other Party or Parties shall Deliver to all the Parties a Notice stating that the mediation has failed and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be borne by the Parties.




























RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF MEDIATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
Note: You may propose a mediator who has been proposed by another Party.
Statement of Position:

Documents:
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the document’s creation, its author and a brief summary of its contents.)
	DOCUMENTS

	DATE
	AUTHOR
	BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



	

	(Signature)



If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Parties.
The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must notify the mediator of their appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the Mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other Party or Parties may Deliver to all the Parties a Notice stating that the mediation has failed and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be borne by the Parties.
NOTICE OF ARBITRATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO: 	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
	This matter is proceeding to arbitration because: (place an “X” in the appropriate response)
(  )	sixty (60) days have passed from the date of the Notice of Mediation, a copy of which is attached hereto and the Parties have not selected a mediator; or
(  )	thirty (30) days have passed from the Delivery of the mediator’s notice indicating that the mediation has failed. A copy of the mediator’s notice is attached hereto.
Proposed Arbitrators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
	

	(Signature)



The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10) days of Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration, an arbitrator from the names submitted. The arbitrator shall be qualified and experienced to act as an arbitrator.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of an arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Arbitration and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the arbitrators submitted by the Parties.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with this Section, such Party shall be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person selected, by the other Party or Parties, in accordance with this Section.
Within ten (10) days after the date of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a written arbitration brief which shall set forth each Party’s position concerning the matters in dispute and shall include:
(a)	a statement of fact and law;
(b)	copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Party’s control;
(c)	a statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the documents included in the brief are all the documents relevant to the dispute that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents that are or might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and
(d)	a statement of the relief sought.
RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF ARBITRATION
DATE:	[insert date]
TO:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM:	[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
	
	Proposed Arbitrators (include name and contact information):
<*>
<*>
Note: You may propose an arbitrator who has been proposed by another Party.
	

	(Signature)



The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10) days of Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration, an arbitrator from the names submitted. The arbitrator shall be qualified and experienced to act as an arbitrator.
If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of an arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Arbitration and in the presence of the other Parties from among the names of the arbitrators submitted by the Parties.
If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with this Section, such Party shall be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person selected, by the other Party or Parties, in accordance with this Section.
Within ten (10) days after the date of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a written arbitration brief which shall set forth each Party’s position concerning the matters in dispute and shall include:
(a)	a statement of fact and law;
(b)	copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Party’s control;
(c) 	a statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the documents included in the brief are all the documents relevant to the dispute that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents that are or might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and
(d)	a statement of the relief sought.
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[bookmark: _GoBack]YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
(THE “CORPORATION”)
ELECTRONIC VOING
BY-LAW NO. 21
A BY-LAW AUTHORIZING ELECTRONIC VOTING BY UNIT OWNERS
RECITALS:
WHEREAS Section 52(1)(b)(iii) of the Condominium Act, 1998, as amended (the “Act”) authorizes voting at meetings of unit owners by a recorded vote that is indicated by telephonic or electronic means, if the by-laws so permit;
AND WHEREAS Section 52(1.1) of the Act defines “telephonic or electronic means” as any means that uses the telephone or any other electronic or other technological means to transmit information or data, including telephone calls, fax, e-mail, automated touch-tone telephone system, computer or computer networks;
AND WHEREAS Section 56(1)(c.1) of the Act provides that the board of directors may authorize, by by-law, the methods permitted for holding a recorded vote;
AND WHEREAS Subsection 14(0.1)(p) of Ont. Reg 48/01(the “Regulation”) provides that the board of directors can pass a by-law “to govern the manner in which an owner or a mortgagee may be present at a meeting of owners or represented in proxy”; and
AND WHEREAS the board of directors have determined it is desirable to permit owners to vote by electronic means.
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED as a By-law of the Corporation as follows:
Notwithstanding any provision in the Corporation’s by-laws with respect to the methods permitted for holding a vote or a recorded vote, votes for all questions proposed for consideration of the owners at a meeting of owners may be cast by a show of hands, personally or by proxy, or a recorded vote that is: (i) marked on a ballot cast personally or by a proxy; (ii) marked on an instrument appointing a proxy; or (iii) indicated by telephonic or electronic means if the Corporation makes available to owners a medium by which owners are able to cast a recorded vote by telephonic or electronic means (the “e-voting system”).
Votes cast by electronic voting shall be deemed a ballot (the “e-ballot”) for the purpose of any vote conducted at the meeting at which the e-ballot was cast.
The e-voting system shall set forth each question proposed for consideration that will be the subject of a vote at a meeting of owners, including the opportunity to vote in favour or against each question and/or in favour of each candidate for election to the board of directors.
The e-ballot is valid only for one meeting of the owners and expires automatically after the completion of the meeting of owners.
Only an owner of a unit may cast an e-ballot and the e-voting system does not authorize another person to cast votes on behalf of an owner.
The e-voting system shall authenticate the owner’s identity.
 The e-voting system shall authenticate the validity of each electronic vote to ensure that the vote is not altered in transit.
The e-voting system shall separate any authentication or identifying information of the owner from the e-ballot, rendering it impossible to trace an e-ballot to a specific owner.
The e-voting system shall produce an electronic receipt for each owner who casts an e-ballot, which shall include the specific vote cast, and the date and time of submission (the “Receipt”). The e-voting system will retain an electronic record of the time and date an owner casts the e-ballot.
An electronic report automatically generated by the e-voting system which tabulates votes may be relied upon and counted by the scrutineers and/or chairperson at a meeting of owners for the purpose of tabulating votes for all questions proposed for consideration of the owners at the meeting of owners (the “Electronic Voting Record”). 
The Electronic Voting Record shall be deemed to be a ballot for the purpose of the Corporation’s obligation to maintain records in accordance with the Act.
The e-ballot shall be counted towards quorum as if an owner were present at the meeting.
DATED at Toronto, on ______________________, 2019
	
	YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	Per:
	

	
	

Per:
	Secretary

_______________________________
President

I/we have authority to bind the Corporation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Corporation.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Corporation to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Markham, Ontario CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Licensed Public Accountants
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT MAY 31, 2019
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current
Cash
General fund $ 28,403 § 21,545
Operating Reserve Fund 29,175 -
Reserve fund (45,673) (5,421)
Total cash 11,905 16,124
Term deposit - reserve fund investments (Notes 3, 4 & 8) 719,635 669,221
Interest receivable - reserves (Notes 4 & 8) 15,986 8,945
Tenant assessment receivable - general fund (Note 8) 3,267 5,800
Prepaid insurance - general fund 16,053 17,826
766,846 717,916
Long term
Term deposit - reserve fund investments (Notes 3, 4 & 8) 188,802 186,290
Interest receivable - reserves (Notes 4 & 8) 523 2,858
189,325 189,148

$ 956,171 % 907,064

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable - general fund (Note 8) $ 9,689 §$ 16,021
Fund balances (Note 8)
Reserve fund short-term (Note 4) 689,948 672,745
Reserve fund long-term (Note 4) 189,325 189,148
Operating Reserve fund 29,175 -
General fund 38,034 29,150
946,482 891,043

$ 956,171 §$ 907,064

Approved on behalf of the board:
Director
Director

See notes to financial statements Page 3
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84

STATEMENT OF GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS AND FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

Twelve Month

Ten Month

Budget 2019 Period Ended Period Ended
(Note 5) May 31,2019 May 31,2018
(Note 2)
Revenue:
Owners' contribution (Note 1e) $ 295,860 $ 295860 $ 242,600
Miscellaneous income (Note 1e) - 496 248
$ 295,860 $ 296,356 $ 242,848
Less: contribution to reserve fund 60,000 60,000 30,800
Owners' contribution to the general fund $ 235,860 $ 236,356 $ 212,048
Common expenses:
Hydro 3,000 1,538 2,091
Water 75,000 68,684 53,928
Management fees (Note 6) 33,059 33,059 25,511
Repairs and maintenance 7,800 6,610 4,208
Landscaping and snow removal (Note 6) 51,460 51,460 37,950
Salt 1,000 662 .
Garbage disposal (Note 6) 20,340 20,340 15,857
Sprinkler system 1,400 - 597
Electrical repairs and light bulbs 2,200 - 715
Insurance 20,330 20,077 15,801
Sewer 3,000 260 1,125
Audit 1,695 2,147 1,836
Condo Authority 900 675 1,423
Garbage tipping fees 6,200 6,154 5,221
Repairs, Unit (Note 10) - - 2,328
Legal, General 4,993 -
Legal, Unit (Note 10) - 5,241 -
Miscellaneous and projector 2,176 2,738 1,734
Sod repairs 3,000 612 380
Grass seed and weed spray 3,000 1,850 -
Garden 300 372 -
235,860 227,472 170,705
Excess of revenue over expenses - $ 8,884 $ 41,343
Fund balance, beginning of year - 29,150 17,007
- 38,034 58,350
Add Transfer from / (Deduct) Transfer to Operating Reserve fund - (29,200)
Fund balance, end of year - $ 38,034 $ 29,150

See notes to financial statements
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND OPERATIONS AND FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

Twelve Month  Ten Month
Budget 2019  Period Ended Period Ended
(Note 5) May 31,2019 May 31, 2018

Revenue:
Owners' contribution to the reserve fund $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 30,800
Interest - 18,526 10,419

$ 60,000 $ 78,526 $ 41,219

Major repairs and replacements: (Note 4)

Basement repair/New Retaining Wall (Note 10) = 11,099 2,600

Roofing - 9,578 17,053

Lighting - 3,589 3,796
Tree trimming/planting - 4,300 =
Painting - 1,019 -
Fence - 1,410 -
Driveway and eaves repair - 951 -

Reserve Fund Study - - 2,204

- 31,946 25,653

Excess of revenue over expenses - 46,580 15,566

Fund balance, beginning of year - 861,893 817,127

908,473 832,693

Add Transfer from / (Deduct) Transfer to Operating Reserve fund (29,200) 29,200

Fund balance, end of year $ 879,273 $ 861,893

Of which:
Short term N $ 689,948 § 672,745
Long term - 189,325 189,148

- $ 879,273 § 861,893

See notes to financial statements Page 5
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
STATEMENT OF OPERATING RESERVE FUND OPERATIONS AND FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

Twelve Month  Ten Month
Budget 2019  Period Ended Period Ended
May 31,2019 May 31, 2018

Expenditures

Maintenance Fee 790
Ashphalt Recovery - (765)
25
Excess (Deficit) of revenue over expenses - (25) -
Fund balance, beginning of year - -
(25) .
Add Transfer from General fund 29,200
Add Transfer from/ (Deduct) Transfer to Reserve Fund - 29,200 (29,200)
Fund balance, end of year - $ 29,175 $ -
Of which:
Short term - $ 29,175 $ -

See notes to financial statements Page 6
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'YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

Purpose of the Organization

The York Condominium Corporation No. 84 (the "Corporation") was registered without share capital in 1973 under
the laws of the Condominium Act of Ontario, the "Act". The Corporation was formed to manage and maintain on
behalf of the owners, the common elements of 75 residential units, located in the City of Toronto. For Canadian
income tax purposes the Corporation qualifies as a not-for-profit organization which is exempt from income tax
under the Income Tax Act.

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations and are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These financial
statements have been prepared within the framework of the significant accounting policies summarized below:

(a) Fund Accounting:
The corporation follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The general fund reports the contributions from owners and expenses related to the operations and administration
of the common elements.

The reserve fund reports the contributions from owners and expenditures for major repairs and replacement costs
of the common elements and assets. The basis for determining the reserve fund's requirements is explained in
Note 4. Only major repairs and replacements of the common elements are charged directly to this reserve fund
with the exception of the cost of the reserve fund study which may be charged to the reserve fund. Minor repairs
and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance of the general fund. The Corporation segregates
amounts accumulated for the purpose of financing future charges to the reserve fund in special designated
accounts, for use only to finance such charges. Interest eamned on these amounts is credited directly to the reserve
fund.

(b) Common Elements:
The common elements of the Corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners and consequently are not
reflected as assets in these financial statements.

(c) Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes.
available in the future.

(d) Contributed Services:

Directors, committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in the Corporation's activities. While these
services benefit the Corporation considerably, a reasonable estimate of their amount and fair value cannot be
made and accordingly, these contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

(e) Revenue recognition:

Owner's assessments are recognized as revenue in the statement of general fund operations and fund balance
and are based on the budget distributed to the owners each year. The rules provide that when there is a deficit an
additional assessment should be required from owners to cover this amount. This will be assessed in the next
fiscal year. However, as owners' units have been sold, an additional assessment of $496 was made on them
(2018: $248) and shown as miscellaneous income. Interest and other revenue are recognized as revenue of the
reserve fund when earned.

(f) Investment policy:
The policy is to invest in Guaranteed Investment Certificates.

(g) Financial Assets and Liabilities:
The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The Corporation
subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost include cash, tenant assessment receivable, interest
receivable, deposit reserve fund investment, and accounts payable.

Page 8
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'YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

2. Change in Fiscal Year End and Comparative Figures

During the previous year, the Board of Directors approved the change of the Corporation's fiscal year end from
July 31st to May 31st. The Corporation received consent from Canada Revenue Agency on July 9, 2018. As a
result the comparative figures are for the ten month period ended May 31, 2018.

3. Term deposit reserve fund investments
Investments are comprised of government debt securities which are divided into short-term and long-term. Short
term investments mature on or before May 31, 2020 and conversely long-term investments mature after that date.
These investments mature on various dates and are eaming interest as described below:

Short Term:
Amount Maturity Interest
72,183 July 16, 2019 2.60%
100,212 July 16, 2019 2.60%
78,254 July 19, 2019 2.60%
91,348 October 19,2019 2.60%
91,348 October 19,2019 2.60%
100,000 January 8, 2020 1.89%
105,868  February 24,2020 2.00%
80422  February 24,2020 2.00%
$ 719,635
Long Term:
71,716 August 25, 2020 2.80% compound
117,086 May 10, 2021 1.25% compound
$ 188,802

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. As at May 31, 2019, the market value of these investments.
approximates their carrying values.

4. Reserve Fund
The corporation as required by the Condominium Act, 1998, has established a reserve fund for financing future
major repairs and replacements of the common elements and assets. Only major repairs and replacements of the
common elements are charged directly to this reserve. Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and
maintenance of the general fund.

A total of $60,000 was added to the reserve fund, which came from operations. Interest of $18,526 was also
added. The reserve fund now totals $879,273 after deducting expenses of $31,946 and deducting transfer to the
general fund of $29,200. Of this amount $689,948 is short-term and $189,325 is long-term.

A reserve fund study was completed on May 8, 2018. The study showed that a contribution of $43,956 is required
for 2019 and increases 10% per year for the first 10 years, and 2% every year thereafter.

5 Budget
The budgeted figures as prepared for comparison purposes are unaudited and are those as approved by the board
in April 2019 for the year ended May 31, 2020.

6 Management Fees and Ground Maintenance
Payments to K.R. Property Management and subcontractors. This amount was allocated to:

Management Fees $ 33,059
Subcontractors

Landscaping and snow removal $ 51,460
Garbage disposal $ 20,340
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

Twelve Month Ten Month
Period Ended Period Ended
May 31, 2019 May 31, 2018
(Note 2)
Cash flows from operating activities:

Owners' contribution for:

General operations $ 238,889 § 215,138
Reserve fund 60,000 30,800

Interest 13,820 2,196

Expenses operating fund (25)

Common expenses - general fund (232,031) (181,716)

Major repairs and replacements (31,946) (25,653)

48,707 40,765
Cash flows from investing activities:

(Increase) decrease in investments (52,926) (62,195)
Increase (decrease) in cash during the year (4,219) (21,430)
Cash, beginning of year 16,124 37,554
Cash, end of year $ 11,905 § 16,124
Comprised of:

General fund $ 28,403 § 21,545

Operating reserve fund $ 29,175

Reserve fund (45,673) (5,421)

$ 11,905 § 16,124

See notes to financial statements
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'YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

7

8

9

i

Financial Instruments
The Corporation s exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following analysis provides a
measure of the Corporation's risk exposure at the statement of financial position date.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The Corporation's main credit risks relate to tenant receivable. The
Corporation is not exposed to significant credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation cannot repay its obligations when they become due to its
creditors. The Corporation is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its current liabilities and commitments.
The Corporation expects to meet these obligations as they come due by generating sufficient cash flow
from operations.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. The Corporation is not exposed to currency risk or other price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The value of fixed income investments will generally rise if
interest rates fall and decrease if interest rates rise. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk on its
deposit reserve fund investments.

Changes in Risk

There have been no significant changes in the risk profile of the Corporation's financial instruments from
that of the prior year.

Fund Balances

The fund balances are made up as follows Reserve Fund  Reserve  Operating Reserve
General Short-term Long-term Short-term
Cash $ 28403 § (45,673) § - $ 29,175
Tenant receivable 3,267 = =
Deposit investments = 719,635 188,802
Interest receivable - 15,986 523
Prepaid insurance 16,053 - -
Accounts payable (9,689)

$ 38034 § 689,948 $ 189325 § 29,175

Commitments

The corporation has engaged the services of K.R. Property Management Agency Inc. to provide management,
accounting and waste removal services for the year ended May 31, 2020 at an annual cost of $33,059 and
$20,340 respectively.

Unit Dispute

There has been an ongoing dispute with one owner. In Fiscal 2017, the repair work was completed by the
corporation. The corporation believed the dispute was settled and asked the arbitrator to close the matter.
However, the matter was not closed as an additional complaint was made that damage occurred during the repair.
While the corporations engineers were allowed limited access to the unit, it can not make an assessment as to
whether damage occurred and if it is their responsibility. Based on this uncertainty, the amount of further costs
cannot be reasonably estimated, and have not been accrued.

Prior Year Amounts
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE OWNERS OF YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 84
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of York Condominium Corporation No. 84 (the "Corporation") which
comprise the statement of financial position as at May 31, 2019, and the statements of general fund
operations and fund balance, reserve fund operations and fund balance, operating reserve fund operations
and fund balance and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation as at May 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of the Corporation
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Corporation.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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